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voice (270) 886-9484 fax (270) 886-321 1 
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February 28,2012 

Jeff R. Derouen 
Executive Director 
Public Service Commission 
PO Box 615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

Re: Crittenden Livingston Water District 
Water Meter Replacement Project 
Application for PSC Approval 

Dear Mr. Derouen: 

Enclose is the application for approval for the Crittenden Livingston Water District to 
enter into a loan agreement with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. Please review 
the documents and let me know if there are any deficiencies. 

If you have any questions or require any further information, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 

l .  
J olulm.hei-ring@lw. gov 
270-886-9484 

Enclosures 

CAdweli Christian Crittenden Hopldns L.ivingston L,yon Muhlenberg Todd T r i g  

http://peadd.org
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

AP P Ll CAT1 0 N 0 F C R ITTE N DEN -LIVI N GSTO N WATER 
DISTRICT FOR AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A LOAN 

) 
) CASE NO. 2012- 

AGREEMENT WITH THE KENTUCKY ) 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 1 

APPLICATION 

CrittendedLivingston Water District (CLWD), by counsel, petitions for an order 
approving the acquisition and installation of automated meter reading equipment 
pursuant to KRS 278.020. 

In support of the application, the following information is provided: 

officers are listed in its current Annual Report on page 6, which is filed with the 
Commission as are its prior years Reports; 

1 I CLWD's office address is 620 East Main, Salem, KY 42078. Its principal 

2. CLWD is a non-profit water district organized under Chapter 74 and has no 
separate articles of incorporation; 

3. A description of CLWDs water system and its property stated at original cost 
by accounts is contained in its 201 0 Annual Report, which is incorporated by reference. 
The 201 1 Report will be filed by May 1, 2012. 

4. CLWD serves retail customers in Crittenden and Livingston Counties and 
sells water at wholesale to non-affiliated water distribution systems in Livingston and 
Lyon Counties. 

5. It proposes to acquire and install automated meter reading equipment as 
described in Exhibit A. The facilities include approximately 1640 transmitters and 
meters as well as related equipment and software. (Because no construction is involved 
Maps, Plans and Drawings for the facilities are not applicable Specifications and Bid 
Documents are provided in Exhibit A). The District is financing the estimated $300,000 
through a low interest loan from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. The District has 
applied for the loan, and has received notice of approval. 

6. The construction is in the public interest and is required to allow CLWD to 
continue to provide adequate service to its customers. The project will provide 
enhanced meter reading and customer service options. The project, its cost, need and 
other details are contained in Exhibit A. 



7. The total project cost is approximately $300,000. See Exhibit A. 

8. Easements and rights of way are not required, see Exhibit B. 

9. This service will not compete with any other utility in the area. 

IO. The proposed project, identified in Exhibit A, is scheduled to begin construction 
on PSC approval, estimated to be June 1 , 201 2 and be completed within 6 months. 
Board approval of the project was given on April 25, 201 1 , attached as Exhibit B. Bid 
information is included with Exhibit A. Bids expire on April 1 , 2012. 

11. No new franchises are required. No DOW permit is required. See Exhibit B. 

12. Construction descriptions are in Exhibit A and Bid Documents. Facts relied on 
to justify the public need are included in the project descriptions in Exhibit A. Based on 
the analysis included with Exhibit A, the installation of the automated facilities will result 
in significant monetary savings to the District. 

13. Maps of the area showing location of the proposed facilities are in Exhibit A. 

14. The construction costs will be funded by the KIA Fund B Loan for $300,000. 

1 5. Estimated operating costs for operation and maintenance, depreciation and 
debt service after construction are shown in Exhibits A and C. 

16. A description of the facilities and operation of the system are in Exhibit A. 

17. A full description of the route, location of the project, description of construction 
and related information is in Exhibit A. 

18. The start date for construction; proposed in-service date; and total estimated 
cost of construction at completion are included in Exhibit A. 

21. The use of the funds and need for the facilities is justified based on a the 
Project Description included as Exhibit A 

22. No rate adjustment is being proposed 

23. Crittenden-Livingston Water District requests and moves for a deviation, 
pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 14, from the requirements of 807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 1 1 (2)(a), which requires that the financial exhibit filed with the Application be for 
a twelve (12) month period ending within ninety (90) days of the filing of the Application. 
There has been no change that is material in nature in its financial condition or 
operation of the District since December 31 , 2010. The financial information contained 
in Exhibits D and E is for the twelve (12) month period ending December 31, 2010 and 



the operational budget for 2011. This is the most recent published financial data 
available. Because favorable bids for the AMI equipment will expire on April 1, 2012 
(Exhibit G), Crittenden-Livingston Water, Crittenden-Livingston Water District cannot run 
the risk of delaying the purchase of the equipment and losing the favorable bids while 
more current financial data is compiled. 

24. The following information is provided in response to 807 KAR 3001 (8): 
a. Articles of Incorporation - None. CLWD is a statutorily created water 
district under KRS Chapter 74; 

25. The following information is supplied pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001(9): 
a. Facts relied upon to show that the application is in the public interest: 
See Exhibit A. 

26. The following information is provided as required by 807 KAR 3001 (1 1): 
a. A general description of the property is contained in the Annual Report, 
Exhibit F. 
b. No stock is to be issued; No bonds are to be issued in this case; 
c. There is no refunding or refinancing; 
d. The proceeds of the financing are to construct the property described in 
Exhibit A and C 
e. The par value, expenses, use of proceeds, interest rates and other 
information is not applicable because no bonds are being issued at this time. 

27. The following exhibits are provided pursuant to 807 KAR 5 : O O l  (I 1)(2): 
a. There are no trust deeds. All notes, indebtedness and mortgages are 
included in Exhibit D. 
b. Property is to be constructed is described in Exhibit A and B. 

28. The following information is provided pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001(6): 
a. No stock is authorized. 
b. No stock is issued. 
c. There are no stock preferences. 
d. Mortgages are listed in Exhibit D. 
e. Bonds are listed in Exhibit D. 
f. Notes are listed in Exhibit D. 
g. Other indebtedness is listed in Exhibit D. 
h. No dividends have been paid. 
i. Current balance sheet; income statement and debt schedule are attached as Exhibit 
E. 

807 KAR 5:OOI 

Section 8(1) Full name and post office address of CrittendedLivingston 
applicant and a reference to the Water District 



particular provision of law requiring 
Application Commission approval. 

PO Box 495 
Salem KY 42078 

Yes Section 8 (2) The original and 10 copies of the 
application with an additional copy 
for any party named therein as an 
interested party. 

If applicant is a corporation, a 
certified copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation and all amendments 
thereto or if the articles were filed 
with the PSC in a prior proceeding, a 
reference to the style and case 
number of the prior proceeding. 

Section 8 (3) Not a corporation 

The facts relied upon to show that 
the proposed new construction is or 
will be required by public 
convenience or necessity., 

Section 9 (2) 
(a) 

Exhibit A 

(b) No franchises or 

Copies of franchises or permits, if 
any, from the proper public authority 
for the proposed new construction or 
extension, if not previously filed with 
the commission. 

permits required- 

Exhibit B 
A full description of the proposed 
location, route, or routes of the new 
construction or extension, including a 
description of the manner in which 
same will be constructed, and also 
the names of all public utilities, 
corporations, or persons with whom 
the proposed new construction or 
extension 
is likely to compete. 



Three (3) maps to suitable scale 
(preferably not more than two (2) 
miles per inch) showing the location 
or route of the proposed new 
construction or extension, as well as 
the location to scale of any like 
facilities owned by others located 
anywhere within the map area with 
adequate identification as to the 
ownership of such other facilities. 

Exhibit B 

The manner, in detail, in which it is 
proposed to finance the new 

Exhibit A & 

construction or extension. 

Exhibit C 
An estimated cost of operation after 
the proposed facilities are completed 

Not Applicable KRS 322.340 Engineering plans, specifications, 
plats and report for documents 
prepared by a registered engineer, 
requires that they be signed, sealed, 
and dated by an engineer registered 
in Kentucky. 



For these reasons, the District requests authorization to construct the facilities and 
any other order or authorization that may be necessary to obtain Commission approval 
for construction. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert B. F r a v  
Frazer, Rogers & Peek 
200 S. Main St. 
PO Box 361 
Marion, KY 42064 

COUNSEL FOR CRITTENDEN- 
LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY) 

) 

) CO U NTY 0 F C R ITTE N DEN 

The undersigned, Randell O’Bryan, being duly sworn, deposes and states that he 
is the Chairman of the Crittenden-Livingston Water District, Applicant, in the above 
proceedings; that he has read the foregoing Application and has noted the contents 
thereof; that the same is true of his own knowledge, except as to matters which are 
therein stated on information or belief, and as to those matters, he believes same to be 
true. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness the signature of the undersigned on this 
March 1, 201 2, Crittenden-Livingston Water. 

Randell O’Bryan, C h a i r m u  

Crittenden-Livingston Water District 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by Randell O’Bryan, Chairman of the 
Crittenden-Livingston Water District, on this March 1 , 201 2, Crittenden-Livingston 
Water. 

MY commission expires: L - \ L ~ z Q \ ~ ,  

.AFLa rg e 



EXHIBIT A 



Project Description 

The Crittenden/Livingston Water District is proposing a project to replace the meters in 
Crittenden County with radio read meters. This project will reduce the District’s time reading meters by 
more than half and reduce 0 & M costs by limiting personnel costs. The meter replacement will affect 
approximately 45% of the systems residential customers. CLWD plans to  finance the project through a 
low interest loan with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority for $300,000. This project is a zero sum 
project no rate increases are necessary to pay for the project. The utility plans to pay for the project 
through personnel cost reductions as well a reduction in vehicle costs associated with reading the 
meters. The water district currently employs two full time meter readers. This project will eliminate the 
need for one these employees. 

The water district is currently short staffed a t  the water treatment plant. The current plan is to  transfer 
personnel to the plant from the field and reduce the overtime costs that have been associated with 
being short staffed. This will eliminate approximately 2hrs of overtime per plant operator per week. 
This will also reduce the amount of overtime that is associated with vacations and training of the current 
staff. Without this project the Water District will need to  add another operator a t  the plant to  reduce 
the labor burden on the current operators. The Water District currently employs four operators a t  the 
water treatment plant. Two operators are on duty a t  all times 24hrs a day seven days a week. 

Overall the Water District plans to  save approximately 46,600 dollars a year with the implementation of 
the described project. The savings break down annually as follows: 

1) Overtime of  2hrs per week for a t  the WTP (x4) $10,900 
2) Vehicle expense $5,700 
3) Staff $30,000 

Total savings $46,600 

This annual savings can easily cover the estimated annual debt service to the Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority of $18,873. Overall the project should net Crittenden/Livingston Water District nearly $28,000 
in annual savings. Additional income and savings have been calculated in Exhibit C. 

The Water District plans to  begin installatian of the radio read meters in June of 2012. The District 
estimates installation and start up to  take approximately three to  six months. 





620 E. Main St. * Salem, Kentucky 42078 Phone (270) 988-2680 e Fax (270) 988-4892 

October 11,2011 

C.I. Thornburg 
140B Ambassador Drive 
Bowling Green, Ky. 42101 

To the  Company of  C.I. Thornburg: 

This letter is t o  thank you for placing a bid wi th our water district for radio read meters. After 
review o f  the bids and much consideration the Crittenden Livingston Co. Water District chose 
the  bid turned in by United Systems. Enclosed for your viewing is  a l ist of  bids turned in for this 
project. 

Sincerely, 

Ronnie Slayden, 
Superintendent 



Radio Read Meter  Bids 

Neptune 

United Systems 

C.I. Thornburg 

Construction Site Services 

$273,276.76 

$276,830.00 

$348,054.00 

$275,000.00 
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Unlted %terns Rt Softwnrc, Ihc. 1% B sofhvnm development tirm that: spedaks In servlnR the Informatton techhOlOgy heeds of utllltles and lomi 
government. Founded In 1977, U S  now Sews aver 400 cUstOmen withln nlnbstate region. As a dlstrlbulor of ltmn AutomatlG Meter ReadlnR (AMR) 
technolo&', we offer completa AMR &ystems, ndta DAn6mltters & tecpEvCrS, encoded meters, handheld & mobile computers, $&ware, installatinn, 
ttalnlnc ahd onaolng support 

Crlttfihden-LiVingmn Co Water Distrlct 
62U G Main St, Ph: (270) 988-2680 

Meters: 

1600 lrrah Flostar $/8x3/4 Single Jet (Infobmntlal) Meters, encoder reglster 1/1,P"'gallon resolutlon 
LOW flaw accuracy 1/16'" gnlton per minub. H$t%;61 approved. 
Rron 1OOW drlve-by datd0gglnR ehdpoInU (I'irdlo modules). 

Mastetmeter 5/8%3/4 8~Ctdm LoRd Mukijet Mctets, encoder rcj?lster 1/10" gallon resolutlon $ 

$ 

---5WS-13,~28/11-Addend~m-4I~cm~te meter selectcd. 
1600 

ltron IDOW drlvcmby datnio~Rlng ehdpolhk (mdlo modubs). 

ltron Flostar 1'' SInglc Jet (Ihferenlial) Meters, encoder register 1 flallon rcsolutlon 
tow flow i)csurw l/dh grllan per mlnuM. NSF-61 approved. 
lthm IbDW drive-by datatoggtng Fhdpolnts (radio modult?sJ. 

Mastwmcter 1" Bottom Load Multljet Mctcrs, enwdtt reglstw 1 gallon resolution 
ltmn l b W  dr lwby dqtalogglng cndpolnts (radlo modules). 

40 

---~WS-11/2R/ll--AddchdUm-N4rn~te meter selected. 
401 

Equipmerit: 

1 Mobllc Cotlector lltr #It for kC300SR Hsndhcld 
Include= MCLite-PORT RF UNIT) ma% antenna, all mblas for power W cnmmunlsatlohs, 
In-vchibie cradle Ram-mount speclk to vehlde Not Included. lttmdted $2OP$dOU. 
I-yenr ttton Warranty Includcd, 2hd Year Malnterirnce: $576 
hlnrmal PtlrC: $9,300. Bld PackaEe dlsinuntcd -$5,000. 

Itran Epvlrohrnenally Sealed, Windows Q.Bac.ed PUOOSR Radla Rendy Hahdheld Unit 
lncludec Serial Dock & Charging Statim, nofwarcr and all reliitcd cable-. 
Con be used with or wlthoul: the MC-LitC for odditlonet walk-by t"adlD aituatlons 
I-Year ltron Wannnty intludcd, 2nd yenr malrrtenance: $47?l./unlt 
Normal Price $5,055- Bid Packagc: discounted -$1,05f. 

1 

5 W a m  

1 ALLIANCEvM Mrter Rendlnp: System Interface: (itroh, Sensus, Neptuhe, Mastermew, etc.~.) 
Ilcensc, on4nr. hclp, Igt Ycnr Malntennnm Included, 2"a Vcar Matnknahce: $995 (wlsting) 

lhon MWRS BB Host Softwnrc - Up to 7,500 M e w  I: icewe 
1" year maintensnee Included, 2"d yew rnaintenwcc; $1,104.00 

1 

WiMnff: 

1 itmn System Starbup Services Plah - 
US5 W provldr: up to 2 Pays Owsite Services for Installetlon/TralnlnR &i System Stan-up , 
Onsltc tralnlng based on an 8 hour day, nll travel crpcnses apt: Includcd. Rally Raw $l , lOn.  

T W I  AMR Bid Pdce: 

160.00 

160.00 

2OD.OO 

200.00 

A,fOO,Ob 

1,000.00 

1,395.00 

3,335.00 

2,zoo.aa 

$ 256,000,OO 

$ 8,000.00 

S 8,OOO.OD 

$ 4,900.00 

$ 1,ow.oo 

$ 1,999.06 

s 3pa.w 

$ 276,830.UO 
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Meterlng R, Radio Technology Conaldcratlans- 
PIOW R e t e  Infurmatian: 
Mast new mechnnlcslAradltIoneI meters SIC AWWA aCt;rArate at 
Important ta capture rcvenul? and typlmk reduces Over tlmc a5 a meter WQars. The ltran Flostar Ian StngleJet m&r rlccura\:c at  1/16 gpm at lowflbw 
(3.75gph 'flow rate).. A mclcr accurate at 118 Rnm fh rate equak 7.5gph flow rate whllc a 1/41 gpm flow rate equals 1.5 gph. 

Data logglnpl: 
Data Logging $llows a uUlityta vlew more than just a monthly re-ddlhg. It am& In vflrlous farm!: From dally to hourly and forvarylnE lengths oftlme fmlm P 
month or even 6 months. Rdlieval ofthe drta lof@lhgVark~ by manufactuwr. In most C S . ~ ,  a return elp to thc meter Is required to mlicct the informdon 
(alter the mc&r was read nnd tho customer had 8 wrnpfaiht). The mllcction mfly mqulre physlcal RCCCSS tothe mdcr plt and may requlre var1ou.p toah to  
Inlthtr? the tmnsmlsslon. The llron 1 0 W  d1ffer.s from the hadtthhal data lopslnp collection mtmnc. Data logglhff far the pnst 40 dally reads can be collected 
ftom all metomwhlle te8dingyPUr mute at normal s p d ,  Or, select WCbUhb can sSllcct40 days of hourly readlngs (960) whllr: reading the route; t h m  wlll 
rcquire a tedumd driulng $peed. In clthcr cis& this dRtR Ir automatlcally downloaded to the meter refldlng host machina vdth regular monthly blltlng 
reedlngs. With dRta IoRking collection 8t  the tlrnc Of vAdlnE, the data Is alrccdy in the offlm when the cu.mmcr calls (reducing return trlps). In office data can 
aka be used b r W m  on/nff nltuationr wlthout a trlp to the meter. 

Time Synchwnlratlon: 
Won MOW radto modulerr havctlmc synchrohhatlon system wide by aPtUrlng readlnpahd Ihte.rVd dala dh the tap df wry hour. If certaln mews or all 
m&m Pru set to csllcct hourly datalogglngthis allmnrsfar tlme mchronlzed d.* ahalyds. F w  wample, a masker meter or dlstrlbutlon meter hourly 
datalogainR w1lI show exactly whnt usage Was used from say Sam Mon KO 8am Tue, elc Fufiher enaly%f$ wh be done with t h e  qnehr@hl!Led daw to ~ u b t r ~ d  
the combined U M ~  of all meters fed by 8 rnaslcr meter to s lat late  water loss for a speclflcacctlah and tlrne period. 

SlghalSmngh: 
AMR .memr areh't cre.md esually ahd slgnnl srrcngth directly relata to perfwnnance. The smnger the s l ! ~ ~ l ,  the lev llkcly a mlssed mid will omr. hako 
plap a crucial tole In reducing Vavd routesand wading colledon times. EM, products mu!it bolanee power, bsticty Ilk & mst. All Ikon r n h  have an 
expected ?Dyeat birttery ilk and i d  year tun wmtnty. Mahy.Wms sfill operate at Imw or Iem. Check the% code, partfI249 Is $Ingle or dual channel at 
lmw or less, pwW297 15 rnulti channel at. 2000mw or IC$$. ltroh rudlos We parM24Y and the MOW has two avnllabla power madas at lOmw& 25omw. Law 
power system wlll recommend or requlre plastic lids. Whlieall tn~hufaCtO~BW'  tadlo rnodirlcs will p e h n  batter under a plank lld than a cast Imn lid, I ~ Q H  
lOdW moduleswlll wnrk undercast lmn llds Ifdeslmd. 

Frequency B4 Bamlwldth: 
Moa systems on the market bday utlllze the unlicensed 9OOMhz channel. Some apmte on only oncar two chnnnckwhlle athcrs such as bmn u:iliilirr?spread 
spectrum tcchnola&yallowlnfl quftlph channels. Tlic ltwn l0W bmndejstf a slghnl on 2WKhz wldeband channels wlthhin the902-928Mhtfrquency R ~ S S  
50 channels In mobile mode and 120 channels in flxetl netvvork made. Mllltlplc channels redim the IlLllhood of intetferenw withlh the bandwtdth. Plus, thc 
lhon 1M)W ksef-learhlng as iE  wlll uuft uslng cwrah chahheis lfthrnrc is RF trams In that speclflcrrm A k W w t e m s  utllk aspcdfk FCC Ilcensed frequency. 
W h L  you own the fights to that frequency YOU may #It encalmtar interference, Such sy.qtems typlzsfly ut)llrc a wry w-vrow bandkvldth and only haven few 
channels to apeatewlthln, thus mmpuundln8 Issues If there Is lnkfference or If much datr, throughput Is neodcd. 

wiwdw. wlrclrrsb: 
AMR svsternztod~am either wlred or wlrctcs arid bah hwc? PIUS end Eons. A wired aptton has more Installation & troublwihowtlng ~ p b l l l t l ~  but cah 
Introduce lfrftequenr cable Is$ues. Wlth a w h d  option (unattached or attached t6 a plt Nd) the radio is In3taRcd doser to the top thus reduclhp, mmy 
t r a n d S S l O h  Issues. Most wired bolutlom am hardwind direcllvto the meter. Hwmr, the Itran salhtlon Includes a wateqmdflnllne wnncctor. The lnllne 
cbnneetarslla~foreasytraublcshoaffn~:slmp~ytryanew t a d l o t o m i f a  tadloormtttet has fatled. Aninllneconnoetorelspnllewsthe~seofvlrMlallyan~ 
meter an tho rnclrket A wlrclev optlon la eflv to Install and reducts posslble hiblt Issues. Howcw, a WlrelesP oMoh wlli bb atthe boftgm d a plr (possibly 
full of water). To reduce ml%ed mds, a wlreless optlon should transmit at  a hlgher powcr. If E wlrelc$s dwlce falls, most M e n  the reglstet or the entlrc? 
meter muSt be pulled fw trouble shooting. 

Mater CornpatlbrlRy: 
&on module auto-dctccdthe brand of mmcr when c o m x W ,  thange-auts Oh exldlnp meters Rnd/ar meter reglsttors wlth AMR tdmpatlble metcr and/or 
rqlmfsls an available orman. Ikon 1MIW encoder Radlo Modu1esa-e compatible wkh all meten thrtamptthefollowihg rqtstcm 

tb 1M lfpm at law flows (79ugh to lSgph flaw late). Flaw rate acrurncy Is 

Badger! Allti mHar reglsEers 
Mnstctctmetcr encadwrcfll6tcr wlth lnlln,: wnhector. 
Neptuntfichlumberger: PraRcad & € d e r  mdcr rcgkkrs 

El~er/AMCO/ABB/Kent IhVlSlON mcter teg lem 
MuclkrlWmry; translator meter tqigtw~ 
Sensus/tnv@hsys/Rockwcll: ICE or ECR meter reglglstcrs 

Rid Options: 
6prlon >,:A laptop b o d  mublle s-m cnn bn substlrutcd far 3n 8ddltlonnl$3,S00. 
OWoh 2: Mudler Nutatlng dlsc PO meterr can be srrbstituted at $ E O  cach with the lOOW h e a d  uf the Flostnr at $160 evch. 
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General: 
Prlces do hot lncludc salestex [If applicable). Thh auotation shall remain flrm fur ninety (90) days from the quotatioh daw, LIhkSS rnodMad in wrltlng by 
USS prlor $a USS acceptance, All teloted invoiccls $hall be pald on a Nct 50 Day basis. All renrlctx 31% to be dcliwred diirin$USS’ stwkrul sewice 
window (8AM-&dt)PM, Mohdey thril Friday, excludinff lJS5 Holidays). 

2“$ Year M8lntenahcpReRen0mmonded buk Opttonet Unft Ptficlng Extended Prfttng 

2 ITRON MVRS/OMRannual melnWnance: $ 1,104. 4 1,104. 
1 ITRON MCLfttt.P~rt Mobile UnItannual maintenance /Each $ 576. $ 576. 
1 ITRQN PC2ODSR Hendhddamual ITI&tehehCe/hh $ 473. $ 473. 

2 sxlstlhg Unliach PDA- Being Rcplaccd(E~lst1ne: malnt) S -595. $ -790. 

Thank you, 

smtt W. SmHh 

&GLiT&&Z /7%xAcy /HI**+- 

UnMd Systtms & Software, me: 
WRco 1,800.455.3293 - Mobllc 1.270.703.0697 

H h ’  

Beth partler ngrec to the fallpwlng i:crms end callditlans as they t’@lated to the M w n r e ,  hardware nnd renrlms avtllned Wlthih thfs. Sales o&r 
outllne: 

I,. T h l ~ q u ~ l ~ o n a h l l  remnlnfmnForninety(90)daysfrom thedatesubmltted, u n k r ; s m o d W e d ~ ~ w ~ ~ n ~ ~ ~ ~ p r i o r ~ u ~  
acceptance, 

2. nits quotation supcrseda~ll prevlous quotations, and ell prcvialrs quotatiamctn: qull and void 

3. Amphnce Pf thls Agreement 8150 requite? thccttentto~&e&& lndlrea Sqlcs Aereemerlf, 

4, The Ulcnt wlfl be blllerl upon chipment or delivery of Roods & sewtccs. All relatcd ihwlce5shall be pald an a ‘Net 10 djy‘ bas15 

5. Thesystrm, whih  may tnclude both equipmem and ZlrftWarf!, Includesthe manubcnrrcr‘s Warranty, Warran~se~cwwil l  hr? 
provided on a mall-in depot bas% with the rnanufactrmmr’swarra~ty orovldons prmltlng, Scc Itmn’s End Uror Llccnge 
Aemcment (EUIAI fer warranty duitionr on each system wmponent, 

6. Reliven/stlall be wlthlr’i 30-90 days. U S  shall ndt be responsible br atIydel8ys beyond I t w ~ n t w I .  Quotatioris do hat lorJude 
rclamd shlppln~ and/or salt!! tnx, If dppllcabtc. 

7. lJs5 shall dot be lfebla bt any consequential dnmages ahlng out of the we ofthe system. 

U S  and the cilcnt ur\derrtRnd and a p e  to the tClm5 and condlllons as mtllnsd. Client acknowledges that Client has, t a d  thls Nmement, 
understands It, and Bgrccs to be bound bv It5 terms. UiCnt ivrther 8Rt’e& thh 15 the mmplote and exclusive r;teterncnt ofdgwement hetwcen the 
p~ritts, which supersedes all Impllctl, oral, and written communications between the partie relatlngtothls dljroemeht, 

Thls Agreement simll be dkctivt. when &ned by both &vties. 

This Agreement Is entered Into a6 bf thls __I day of ,2011 

U N m b  SY!TEMS si SOFlWARi!, INC 
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I I I I I I I I I 
N 
A 

Projeect Area 

MARION WATER DEPARTMENT 

SALEM MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM "Sm-L-" 

CRIT'T ENDEN-LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Lakes 



I I I I I I I I I I ..",, n 

Projeect Area 

MARION WATER DEPARTMENT 

--- SALEM MlJNlClPAL WATER SYSTEM 

CRITTEr\lDEN-LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Lakes 

Bate: 12/22/2011 PO j e et. 



Projeect Area 

MARION WATER DEPARTMENT 

-----r ̂^r SALEM MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM 

*-- CR16TENDEN-LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Lakes 

Date: 12/22/2011 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
FUND B, INFRASTRUCTURE 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

BORROWER: 

BRIEF DESCRl PTI ON: 

Reviewer: Kasi White 
Date: August 4,201 1 
KIA Loan Number: Bll-10 
WRlS Number WX21055012 

CRIllENDEN-LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

PROJECT FINANCING: J 
Fund B Loan $ 300,000 

PROJECT BUDGET I 
Administrative Expenses $ 7,250 
Equipment 290,000 
Contingency 2,750 

TOTAL $ 300,000 
. . -. . . . . . -. . . 

I 
Rate 

TOTAL $ 300,000 
--.. . .. .. .--. 

2.0% Payment $ 18,873 
Term 20 years 1 st Payment 6 Mo. after first draw 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I Engineer Stigall Engineering Associates, Inc. 

3THER STATE-FUNDED 
'ROJECTS LAST 5 YRS See Attached 

I AVO. Bill SESIDENTIAL RATES - Users 
Current 3,437 $ 43.30 (for 4,000 gallons) 

2ASHFLOW 

Additional O $  43.30 (for 4,000 gallons) 
SEGIONAL COORDINATION ]This project is consistent with regional planning recommendations. 

Cash Available for Income after Debt 
Debt Service Debt Service Service Coverage Ratio 



Reviewer: Kasi White 
Date: August 4, 201 1 

Loan Number: B I I - I  0 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE REVOLVING LOAN FUND (FUND "B") 

LIVINGSTON COUNTY 
PROJECT REVIEW 

WX21055012 

CRITTENDEN-LIVINGSTON COUNT WATER DISTRICT 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The Crittenden - Livingston Water District is requesting a Fund B loan in the rn mt of 
$300,000 to replace the existing meters in CriiendenCounty with radio read meters. 
This will reduce the District's time reading meters by more than half and reduce 
operating and maintenance costs by limiting personnel costs. Meter replacements will 
affect approximately 45% of the customer base of the District. 

The District serves more than 3,400 retail customers in Crittenden and Livingston 
counties and it sells wholesale water to the cities of Grand Rivers, Salem and 
Smithland, the Ledbetter Water District and the Lyon County Water District and its 
activities are subject to PSC jurisdiction. 

II. PROJECT BUDGET 
Total 

Administrative Expenses 
Equipment 
Contingency 

$ 7,250 
290,000 

2,750 
Total 

111. PROJECT FUNDING 

Fund B Loan 

$ 300,000 

Amount % 
$ 300,000 100% 

Total $ 300,000 100% 

IV. KIA DEBT SERVICE 
Construction Loan $ 300,000 
Interest Rate 2.0% 
Loan l e r m  (Years) 20 
Estimated Annual Debt Service $ 18,273 
Administrative Fee (0.20%) I $ 600 
Total Estimated Annual Debt Service $ 18,873 



V. PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Bid Opening: August, 201 1 
Construction Start: October, 201 1 
Construction Stop: March, 201 2 

VI. CUSTOMER COMPOSITION AND RATE STRUCTURE 

A. Customers 

Residential 3,408 
Commercial 13 
Industrial 16 
Total 3,437 

B. Rates 

Rates were last increased February, 2006. The current rate structure is as 
follows: 

"I Current 
First 1,000 Gallons $1 6.06- 

Next 10,000 Gallons 7.80 
6.15 

Cost for 4,000 gallons $43.30 

Next 9,000 Gallons 9.10 

Over 20,000 Gallons -- 

Affordability Index (Rate/MHl) I .4% 

The district currently has agreements to provide water to the City of Salem, City of 
Grand Rivers, Lyon County Water District, Ledbetter Water District and the City of 
Smithland. Grand Rivers revenues accounts for approximately 9% of total revenue 
for the district. 

VU. DEMOGRAPHICS 

In 201 0, Crittenden and Livingston County's populations were 9,108 and 9,609, 
respectively, with a weighted average Median Household Income (MHI) of $37,819. The 
project will qualify for a 2% interest rate because the MHI is greater than 80% of the 
$41 ,I 97 MHI for the Commonwealth. 



VIII. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (See Exhibit 1) 
Financial information for the Crittenden-Livingston County Water District was obtained 
from the audited financial statements for the years ended December 31,2007 through 
2009, selected compiled financial statement for 201 0, and financial information filed 
with the PSC for 2010. 

HISTORICAL 
Both revenues and operating expenses have been flat from 2007 to 2010. The 
customer count has increased about 3.6% however total gallons billed has declined 
7.4% due to a decrease in commercial and resale sales. 

The debt coverage ratio has ranged from a high of 1.3 in 2007 and 2008 to a low of 1.1 
in 2009. The District received state grants designated for debt service totaling $900,000 
during 2009 and 2010. 

The balance sheet reflects a debt to equity ratio of 1.6 and unrestricted cash is slightly 
less than one month’s operating expenses. Sinking funds are maintained to fund debt 
service on revenue bonds. The 2006 through 2009 Reports on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters noted that “deposits into the 
sinking fund were insufficient to meet the requirements of the bond ordinances.” The 
2009 report also noted that the majority of $43,000 of inactive accounts receivable 
( I  5% of accounts receivable) was considered uncollectible and should be written off in 
2010. It does not appear that this occurred. 

PROJECTIONS 
Projections are based on the following assumptions: 

Revenues will increase 2% per year from growth 
0 Revenues will increase 3% in 201 3 for the approximately 1,600 customers that 

receive new meters. 
Expenses will increase 4% per year. 
A replacement reserve of $750 will be funded each year 

0 Debt service on the proposed loan will be $18,873 annually. 
The debt service ratio is projected at 1.7 for 201 1 with approximately $430,000 
in income after debt service. This is not the result of any favorable improvement 
in operating performance but is due to debt service timing associated with a 
lease with the Livingston County Fiscal Court. Funding was arranged through a 
financing agreement between the Court and KACO. Debt service coverage is 1 .O 
in 201 3 when principal and interest repayments begin. 

Based on the proforma assumptions, the utility shows adequate cash flow to repay the 
KIA Fund E3 loan. 

REPLACEMENT RESERVE 
The annual replacement cost is $750. This amount should be added to the replacement 
account each December 1 until the balance reaches $7,500 and maintained for the life 
of the loan. 



IX. DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

1995 Series A Bonds 
2000 Series A Bonds 
2000 Series B Bonds 
2000 Series C Bonds 
2004 Bonds 
2008 Bonds 

KACO Lease 
KIA (Fl -05) 

Outstanding Maturity 
$ 722,000 2035 

1,774,000 2040 
1,540,000 2040 

621,000 2040 
4,386,000 2029 
1,750,000 2030 
1,001,711 2023 
2,560,000 2039 

Total $ 14,354,711 

X. OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDING IN PAST FIVE YEARS 

Project Title - Funding Source Amount Type 
Water Project HB380 80c000 Grant 
Water Project HB380 100,000 Grant 
Debt Retirement HB608 300,000 Grant 
Debt Retirement HB608 600,000 Grant 

XI. CONTACTS 

Applicant 
Name Crittenden-Livingston Water District 
Address 620 East Main 

Contact Ronnie Slayden 
Phone (270) 988-2680 
Email rslayden h2o@ya hoo .corn 

Salem, KY 42078 

Applicant Contact 
Name Pennyrile Area Development District 
Address 300 Hammond Drive 

Hopkinsville, KY 42240 
Contact John Herring 
Phone (270) 886-9484 
Email JohnM.Herring@ky.gov 

mailto:JohnM.Herring@ky.gov


Engineer 
Name Robert Stigall 
Firm Stigall Engineering Associates, Inc. 
Address 

Phone (615) 460-7515 
Email rstigall@bellsouth.net 

41 17 Hillsboro Pike, Suite 206 
Nashville, TN 3721 5 

XI I. RE CO M M E N D AT1 0 N S 

KIA staff recommends approval of the loan with the standard conditions. 

mailto:rstigall@bellsouth.net
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CRITTENDEN-LMNGSTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEETS (DECEMBER YEAR END) 

Upon 
Audited Audited Audited Unaudited Completion 

ASSETS - 2007 - 2008 - 2009 - 2010 2012 
Current Assets 
Cash 46,608 61,279 78,440 73.283 327,400 
Accounts Receivable 289,055 279,867 292,038 296,427 307,500 

Prepaid 13,680 14,185 14,685 14,049 15,000 
Grant Receivable 165,534 0 16.046 0 0 

- 
Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets 
Sinking Funds 
Deposits 
Constructions Projects 
Depreciation Reserve 

.- 
514,877 355,331 401,209 383,759 649.900 

400,518 482,763 526.968 584.222 584,222 
14,434 18,728 22.330 25.932 25.932 

907,616 13 0 0 0 
75,208 76,647 85,302 105,485 136,235 

Total Restricted Assets 
- . _ I ~ - . -  

1,397,776 578,'?51 634,600 715,639 746,389 

Utility Plant 
Land, System, Building and Equipment 27,346,862 27,780,988 27,805,325 27,837,373 28,187,373 
Less Accumulated Depreciation ( ) (4,131,424) (4,696,323) (5,324,019) (5,943,370) (7,245,342) 

Net Fixed Assets 23,215,438 23,084,665 22,481,306 21,894,003 20,942,031 

Other Assets 
Unamortized Bond Costs and Discount, Net 259,839 252,510 259.999 394,314 324.31 4 

Total Other Assets 259,839 252,510 259,999 394,314 324,314 

- ~- 

-.--. 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll and Taxes 
Deposits 
Accrued Interest 
C.P. Debt 

Total Current Liabilities 

25,387,930 24,270,657 23.777,114 23,387,715 22,662,634 

26,405 27,918 17,715 34,947 35,000 

17,689 21,285 9,284 9,780 9,500 
101.864 315,531 162,279 178,515 170,000 
235,431 3,071 ,I 14 341,818 323.045 485,564 

408,062 3.467,162 578,631 552,364 710,064 

26,673 31,314 47,535 6,077 10,000 

Liabilities Payable - Restricted Assets 
Construction Payables 741,144 75,324 0 0 0 

Total Liabilities Payable - Restricted Assets 741,144 75,324 0 0 0 

Long Term Liabilities 
Notes Payable 
Bonds Payable 
Deferred Refunding Costs 

Total Long Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Retained Earnings: 
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Retained Earnings 

Total Liabilities and Equities 

Balance Sheet Analysis 
Current Ratio 
Debt to Equity 
Working Capital 
Percent of Total Assets in Working Capital 
Days Sales in Accounts Receivable 

1,246.143 1,159,529 3,791,711 3,492,666 300,000 
14,312,300 11,288.800 10,956,200 10,539,000 13,378.809 

15,558,443 12,400,506 14,702,911 13,989,489 13,642,278 

16,707,649 15,942,992 15,281,542 14,541,853 14,352,342 

0 (47,823) (45,000) (42,177) (36,531) - 

7,585,471 7,529,289 7,391,578 7,581,469 6,814,189 
545,968 204,500 634,602 715,639 746,389 
548,842 593,876 469,392 548,754 749.714 

8,680.281 8,327,665 8,495,572 8,845,862 8,310,292- 

25,387,930 24,270,657 23,777.1 14 23,387,715 22,662,634 

1.3 0.1 0.7 0 7  0.9 
1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.7 

106.815 (3,111,831) (177,422) (168,605) (60,164) 
0.4% -12.8% -0 7% -0.7% -0.3% 
51.2 50.6 54.3 52.7 52.7 

7/18/2011 927 AM, Balance Sheet 
K \ 2  Loan Team\Fund B Loans & Grants\Pmjects\Crittenden-livingston Water District (E1 l-lO)\Executive Summary, Crittenden-Livingston Water Clistrict (81 1-10) 
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Members: 

American Imtitule of 
Certified Public Accountants 

Kentucky Society OF 
Csrtified Public Accountants 

Tennessee Society of 
Certified Public Accounkink 

THURMAN CAMPBELL GROUP, PLC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Members of the Commission 
Crittenden Livingston Water District 

Crittenden Livinaston Water Dis We have compiled the accompanying financial statements G ict, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2010, as listed in the table of contents: We have not audited or 
reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Management of Crittenden Livingston Water District is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America and for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, 

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The 
objective of a compilation is to assist management of Crittenden Livingston Water District in presenting 
financial information in the form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any 
assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements. 

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 2 through 4 is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. We have compiled the supplementary information from information that is the 
representation of management, without audit or review. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any 
other form of assurance on the required supplementary information. 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets-budget and actual on page 18 is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
We have compiled the supplementary information from information that is the representation of 
management, without audit or review. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of 
assurance on the required supplementary information. 

We are not independent with respect to Crittenden Livingston Water District. 

March 30,201 1 

117 West Ninth Street - Hopkhvilk, Kentucky 42240 (270) 885-8481 
500 West Mala Street - Prfncetoa, Kentucky 42445 (270) 3653733 
324 FrnnkIln Sfreet - Clarkvflle, Tennessee 37040 (931) 552-7474 

wmv.tccpas.com 

http://wmv.tccpas.com


C R ITTEN D EN LlVI NG STO N WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31,2010 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District ("District") offers Management's Discussion and Analysis to 
provide an overview and analysis of the District's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 
2010. To fully understand the entire scope of the District's financial activities, this information should be 
read in conjunction with the financial statements provided in this document. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities by $8,803,685 at December 31, 2010. Of this amount 
$594,002 is restricted and $7,539,292 is invested in capital assets net of the related debt, leaving 
unrestricted net assets of $670,391. 

The District's net assets increased for the year by $308,113. The District received grant funds during the 
2010 year in the amount of $477,076. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's financial statements. 
The District is authorized under Kentucky Revised Statutes and constitutes a governmental subdivision of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The District's financial report includes only the activities of the 
Crittenden Livingston Water District. 

The District's financial statements are oreoared on the accrual basis of accountina in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles piomulgated by the Governmental Accounkg Standards Board 
(GASB) . 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. 

The District's basic financial statements are comprised of two components: 1) fund financial statements, 
and 2) notes to the financial statements. In addition, this report contains other supplementary information 
to provide the reader additional information about the District. 

Fund Financial Statements - The focus of fund financial statements is directed to specific activities of a 
governmental entity rather than the entity as a whole. The District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting. All activities of the District are reported in the enterprise fund, a 
proprietary fund type. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. Because the District consists of only a proprietary fund, reconciliations of the fund 
financial statements to government-wide financial statements are not necessary. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 5 - 8 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements - These notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements 
can be found on pages 9 - 18 of this report. 

Supplementary Information - Supplementary information can be found on page 19 of this report. 

Page 2 



OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District's financial position. 
The District's assets exceeded liabilities by $8,803,685 at December 31, 2010. 

During 201 0, the District's capital assets decreased $587,304 and total long-term debt decreased by 
$756,104. These changes were accompanied by an increase in unrestricted net assets of $200,999. 
The District's overall financial position and results of operations for the past two years are summarized as 
follows, based on the information included in the financial statements. 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Restricted assets 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Long-term liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital, net of debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Operating revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating income 

Grant receipts 
Tap-on fees 
Donated capital 
Interest revenue 
Loss on debt extinguishment 
Interest expense 
Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 
Net assets, end of year 

Business-type Activities 
rn - 2009 

$ 980,072 $ 928,179 
21,894,003 22,481,307 

11 9,325 107,632 
309,453 259,999 

23,302 , 853 23,777,117 

13,946,807 14,702,911 
552,361 578,634 

14,499,168 15,281,545 

7,539,292 7,391,578 
594,002 634,602 
670,391 469,392 

8,803,685 8,495,572 

2,053,900 1,961,875 
(1,657,015) (1,741,999) 

396,885 21 9,876 

477,076 463,708 
21,100 29,600 

1,693 11,297 
2,099 1,527 
(8,950) 

(581,790)- (590,246) 
308,113 135,762 

8,495,572 8,359,810 
$ 8,803,685 $ 8,495,572 

A portion of the District's net assets ($7,539,292) reflects its investment in net plant, such as water tanks, 
buildings, equipment, and distribution systems, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those 
assets. The district uses these assets to provide services to customers; consequently, these assets are 
not available for future spending. Resources needed to repay the outstanding debt shown on the balance 
sheet must come from other sources such as operations, since the assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these long-term liabilities. 

Page 3 



BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The original budget and the final budget passed by the board anticipated operating revenues of 
$1,999,000 and operating expenses of $955,475. Actual operating revenues were over-budget $54,900, 
actual operating expenses were over-budget by $701,540 due in large part to the absence of depreciation 
in the budget. Actual non-operating revenues and expenses were over-budget $109,822 for a total 
negative budget variance of $756,462. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The District's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2010 was $21,894,003. During the year 
ended December 31 , 201 0, the District capitalized new meters. There were no other significant asset 
purchases during 2010. 

7 201 0 - 2009 
Land $ 58,267 $ 51,267 
Machinery 27,680,795 27,658,107 
Buildings 51,928 51,928 
Furniture & fixtures 46,383 44,023 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,943,370) (5,324,019) 
Total capital assets $ 21,894,003 $ 22,481,306 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

f 

351: LGqeoo 

The District's long-term debt at December 31 , 2010 was $14,031,666. The District entered into a lease 
agreement through Livingston County Fiscal Court for KACO Lease Agreement. Proceeds were used to 
retire the 2009 KY Rural Water short-term financing arrangement shown below. A schedule of the 
District's long-term debt at December 31, 2010 follows: 

Revenue Bond Series 1995A 
Revenue Bond Series 19956 
Revenue Bond Series 2000A 
Revenue Bond Series 20008 
Revenue Bond Series 2000C - Revenue Bond Series 2004 

P'Revenue Bond Series 2008C 
*@ 2009 KY Rural Water 

KIA Loan 
LWDD Loan 

KACO Loan 
Total long-term debt 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

- 201 0 
$ 722,000 

1,774,000 
1,540,000 

621,000 
4,222,000 
1,660,000 

932,666 

2,560,000 
$ 14,031,666 

- 2009 
$ 737,000 

84,200 
1,804,000 
1,564,000 

63 1,000 
4,386,000 
1,750,000 
2,720,000 
1,001,711 

70,000 

$ 14,747,911 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Crittenden Livingston Water 
District's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions or requests for 
additional information may be addressed to Ronnie Slayden, Superintendent, Crittenden Livingston Water 
District, 620 East Main Street, Salem, KY 42078. 
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Crittenden Livingston Water District 
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 

December 31,2010 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Grants receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Restricted cash 
Restricted investments 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash 

Capital assets: 
Land 
Machinery 
Buildings 
Furniture and fixtures 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 

Other assets: 
Bond issue costs 
Less accumulated amortization 
Total other assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

$ 85,375 
296,426 

14,049 
138,451 
445,771 

980,072 

1 19,325 

58,267 
27,680,795 

51,928 
46,383 

(5,943,370) 
21,894,003 

441,789 
(1 32,336)- 
309,453 

22,322,781 

$23,302,853 

Page 5 
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Crittenden Livingston Water District 
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 

December 31,2010 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilties: 

Current maturities of long-term debt 
Accounts payable trade 
Payroll liabillties 
Tenant deposits payable 
Interest payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Notes payable 
Bonds payable 
Deferred Bond Costs 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Net assets invested in capital 
Net assets restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted net assets 

Total net assets 

$ 323,045 
21,978 
19,043 
9,780 

178,515 
552,361 

3,492,666 
10,539,000 

14,499,168 

7,539,292 
594,002 
670,391 

$ 8,803,685 

Page 6 
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Crittenden Livingston Water Distrlct 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended December 31 , 201 0 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 
Other income 

Total operating revenue 

Operating Expenses 
Salary expenses 
Water treatment expenses 
Maintenance expenses 
General operatlng expenses 
Depredation 
Amortization 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 
Interest revenue 
interest expense 
Loss on debt extinguishment 

Total nonoperating expenses 

Capital Contributions 
Proceeds from grants 
Donated capital 
Tap-on fees 

Total capital contributions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See accompanying notes and accountant's report. 

$ 2,008,065 
45,835 

2,053,900 

568,958 
190,067 
79,505 

167,433 
$1 9,352 

31,620 
1,657,015 

2,099 
(581,790) 

(8,950) 
(588,64 1 ) 

477,076 
1,693 

21,100 
499,869 

308,113 

8,495,572 

$ 8,803,685 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 

Year Ended December 31,2010 
STATEMENT OF CAS t4 FLOWS-PROPR IETARY FUND 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for services 

Net cash provided (used) by operatlng activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Tap-on fees 
Proceeds from grants 
Acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment 
New debt acquired 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 
Debt issuance costs 
Loss on debt extinguishment 

Net cash provided (used) for capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents - current 
Restricted cash I current 
Restricted cash - noncurrent 
Restricted investments - noncurent 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations: 
Operating income 
Adjustments-operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Grants receivable 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Customer deposits 
Accrued liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accompanying notes and accountant's report. 

$ 2,066,054 
(432,i 66) 
(597,450) 

1,036,4 18 

21 ,I 00 
477,076 
(31,897) 

2,560,000 
(3,2950 18) 

(565,554) 
(1 33,000) 

4,658 

(962,635) 

2.099 

2,099 

75,882 

713,040 

$ 788,922 

$ 85,375 
138,451 
1 19,325 
445,771 

$ 788,922 

$ 396,885 

650,972 

(4,388) 
636 

16,046 

4,263 
496 

(28,492) 

$ 1,036,418 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Activity - The Crittenden Livingston Water District is a county water district supported by funds 
derived from the sale of water and is operated by a District Board. The District is authorized under 
Kentucky Revised Statutes and constitutes a governmental subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky. The District is located in Salem, Kentucky and primarily serves the Crittenden and 
Livingston County, Kentucky area. 

Principles determinlng scope of reporting entity - The District‘s financial report includes only the 
funds of the District. The District has no oversight responsibility for any other governmental entity 
and is not included in any other governmental “reporting entity” as defined by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board pronouncement. The District’s Board members are appointed equally 
by the County Judge Executives of Crittenden and Livingston counties, and they have decision 
making authority, the authority to set rates, the power to designate management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 

Basis of accounting - The District is presented as an enterprise fund. The financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized 
when the exchange takes place. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The District follows all pronouncements of the Government Accounting Standards Board, and has 
elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non- 
operating items. operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for water 
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and sewices, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Accounts receivable - The direct write-off method was used for recording un-collectible accounts. 
No allowance for un-collectible accounts was deemed to be needed. The District grants credit to 
customers, substantially all of whom are residents of Crittenden and Livingston counties. 

Utility plant - The utility plant is carried at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income 
for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to income as incurred; significant 
betterments are capitalized. Contributions from customers for the purpose of purchasing service 
connections to the utility plant are recorded as contributions when they are received. Depreciation 
on contributed assets is recorded as an expense in the statement of revenue and expense. Capital 
assets are depreciated over the following useful lives: 

Buildings - 10 to 50 years 
Transmission Lines - 5 to 50 years 
Plant Equipment - 5 to 10 years 
Vehicles .- 5 years 

Pumping Equipment - 5 to 10 years 
Meters -- 5 to 10 years 
Office Equipment - 5 to 10 years 

Intangible assets - Financing and bond issue costs are being amortized over the life of the debt on 
the straight-line basis. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Assets -When an expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted assets are available, the District's policy is to apply restricted assets 
first. 

Revenue Recognition - Operating revenues are recognized in the period that water is supplied to 
- participants and others. All other revenues are reflected in non-operating income and are 

recognized when earned. 

Taxes on income - The Crittenden Livingston Water District is exempt from paying income taxes 
under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Budget - The District adopts an annual budget prepared under a basis of accounting in 
accordance with provisions of the Public Service Regulatory Commission. 

Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers 
all highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents. 

2 RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Crittenden Livingston Water Slnking Fund and the Rural Water Bond Issue Sinking Fund - 
The sinking funds were established for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the Water 
Revenue Bonds. The bond ordinances require that the amount deposited each month equals one- 
sixth of the next succeeding interest requirement and one-twelfth of the principal requirements 
becoming due on the note on the next succeeding January 1. At December 31, 201 0 the balance 
of the Sinking Fund was $138,451. 

Depreciation Reserve - The bond ordinances require Crittenden Livingston Water District to make 
monthly contributions to this fund after observing the priority of deposits into the Sinking Fund. The 
funds in the Depreciation Fund can be expended for the purpose of paying the cost of unusual or 
extra-ordinary maintenance, repairs, renewals or replacements, and the cost of constructing 
additions and improvements to the system. Under the 1995 ordinance the District is to make $1,872 
monthly deposits until the Depreciation fund reaches $224,640 and shall be maintained throughout 
the life of the bonds. The 1995 bond ordinance amends all previous ordinances. Under the 2000 
ordinance the District is to make $2,115 monthly deposits over the life of the loan in addition to the 
requirement of all previous ordinances. At December 31, 2010 the balance of the Depreciation 
Reserve Fund was $109,545. 

Crittenden Livingston Tenant Deposit Fund - This account is set aside to account for customer 
deposits. At December 31,2010 the balance of the Crittenden Livingston Tenant Deposit Fund was 
$9,780. 

Construction Funds - Occasionally, Crittenden Livingston Water District is involved in various on- 
going construction projects. A bank account has been established for each project referred to as 
"Phases". Monies deposited to the construction accounts is reserved for construction of the 
appropriate phase. 
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CRIlTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2 RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Regions Sinking Funds -The District maintains sinking accounts with Regions Bank for payments 
on the 2004 and 2008 bond issuances and the 2009 short term financing which was retired in 2010. 
A monthly amount is transferred from the Rural Water Sinking Fund to meet the annual principal 
and interest obligations related to the previously mentioned financing. The balance held at Regions 
Bank for these purposes at December 31,2010 was $445,771. 

3 DEPOSITS 

The District has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40 
effective July 1, 2005. GASB 40 is designed to inform financial statement users about deposit 
and investment risks that could effect a government's ability to provide services and meet its 
obligations as they become due. There are risks inherent in all deposits and investments, and 
GASB believes that the disclosures required by this Statement provide users of governmental 
financial statements with information to assess common risks inherent in deposit and investment 
transactions. Deposit and investment resources often represent significant assets of the 
governmental fund. These resources are necessary for the delivery of governmental services 
and programs. GASB 40, as it applies to the district, includes disclosure of the following: 

Risks related to custodial credit risk of bank deposits; 
0 

0 Interest rate risk; and 

Risks related to custodial credit risk of deposits; 
Risks related to custodial credit risk of investments; 

Deposit and investment policies related to those risks. 

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that a government will not be able to recover its 
deposits, investments, or collateral from the bank in the event of bank failure. 

As of December 31, 2010, the carrying amount of District's deposits was $788,772 and the bank 
balance of $794,994 was categorized as follows: 

Insured by FDIC $ 508,902 
Uninsured and collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution 
in the district's name 286,092 

Total $' 794,994 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in 
interest rates. 

Cash on deposit at Regions Bank is held in a AAA money market fund at Regions Bank. The 
investments serve as the bond sinking fund for the 2004, 2008 and 2009 bond series. 
Investments are held in Federated Treasury Obligations until required for debt payment. The 
investments are collateralized through the Trust Department at Regions Bank and consist of the 
following: 

Treasury Obligations $ 445,771 $ - $ - $ 445,771 $ 445,771 AAA 

Catesory Carrying Market 
1 2 3 Amount Value Rating 

The district's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
district at December 31 , 201 0. The categories are described as follows: 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3 DEPOSITS (continued) 

Category 1 - Insured or registered, with securities held by the entity ar its agent in the 
entity's name. 

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust 
department or agent in the unit's name. 

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, in its 
trust department or agent but not in the entity's name. 

Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS 66.480) authorize Kentucky municipalities to invest in: 
(a) Obligations of the U. S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities. Such investments may 

be accomplished through repurchase agreements reached with national or state banks 
chartered in Kentucky; 

(b) Bonds or certificates of indebtedness of the state of Kentucky, agencies and 
instrumentalities; 

(c) Savings and loan associations insured by the U. S. government: 
(d) Interest-bearing deposits in national or state banks chartered in Kentucky and insured by 

(e) Deposit accoiints with banking institutions; 
(f) State treasurer investment pool. 

an agency of the U. S. government; 

The District does not have a deposit policy. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for Crittenden Livingston Water District for the year ended December 31, 
2010, was as follows: 

Balance 
Balance December 31 , 

January 1 , 2010 Additions Deletions 201 0 
Capital assets being depreciated: 
Lake and river intake 
Pumping equipment 
Water treatment equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Distribution reservoirs and pipe 
Small equipment 
Transmission and distribution mains 
Lab equipment 
Power operated equipment 
Services 
Meters and installation 
Communication equipment 
Hydrants 
Office furniture and fixtures 
Off ice building 

Subtotal 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Lake and river intake 
Pumping equipment 
Water treatment equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Distribution reservoirs and pipe 
Small equipment 
Transmission and distribution mains 
Lab equipment 
Power operated equipment 
Services 
Meters and installation 
Communication equipment 
Hydrants 
Office furniture and fixtures 
Office building 

$ 888,411 $ $ $ 888,411 
135,132 135,132 

4,402,784 4,402,784 
153,114 153,114 
809,623 809,623 

17,779 17,779 
14,069,114 14,069,114 

4,080 2,151 6,231 
65,632 65,632 

6,OI 2,089 6,012,089 
861,954 20,537 882,491 

9,456 9,456 
228,940 228,940 
44,023 2,360 46,383 
51,928 51,928 

27,754,059 25,048 27,779,107 

(51,242) (1 7,768) (69,OI 0) 

(1,010,034) (88,129) (1,098,163) 
(138,984) . (6,932) (1 45,916) 
(231,420) (1 6,192) (247,612) 

(1 5,103) 
(2,955,560) 

(4,177) 
(65,632) 

(7 1 2,130) (1 71,551) (883,68 1) 
(278 , 58 1) (24,682) (303,263) 

(5,857) 

(39,258) 
(22,279) 

(24,216) (4, f 49) - (28,365) 

(14,871) (232) 

(4,080) (97) 
(2,674,178) (281,382) 

(65,632) 

(59,495) 
(5,308) (549) 

(54,702) (4,793) 
(37,758) (1,500) 
(20,883) (1,396) 

Subtotal (5,324,OI 9) (61 9,352) (5,943,371) 
Capital assets being depreciated, net 22,430,040 (594,304) 21,835,736 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 

Capital assets, net 
51,267 7,000 - 58,267 

$ 22,481,307 $ (587,304) $ - $ 21,894,003 

Depreciation charged to income was $619,352 during the year ending December 31,2010, 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT 

Bonds Pavable 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 1995 (Series A) were 
issued in the amount of $884,000 to finance the cost of the Phase 5 construction project (system 
additions). The bond maturity dates are January 1 , 1998-2035. The interest rate is 4.5%. This 
issue was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 1995 (Series 8) were 
issued in the amount of $100,000 to finance the cost of the Phase 5 construction project (system 
additions). The bond maturity dates are January 1, 1998-2035. The interest rate is 5.13%. This 
issue was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. The 1995 Series B was refunded in April 2010 through grant proceeds obtained from 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2000 (Series A) in the 
amount of $2,000,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 6b construction project (water 
plant). The bond maturity dates are January 1, 2003-2040. The interest rate is 4.5%. This issue 
was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2000 (Series 8)  in the 
amount of $1,725,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 6b construction project (water 
plant). The bond maturity dates are January 1, 2003-2040. The interest rate is 4.75%. This issue 
was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2000 (Series C) in the 
amount of $700,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 66 construction project (water 
plant). The bond maturity dates are January 1 , 2003-2040. 'The interest rate is 4.5%. This issue 
was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2004 (Series D) in the 
amount of $4,998,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 9 construction project (system 
additions). The bond maturity dates are January I ,  2004-2029. This issue was purchased by 
Morgan, Keegan and Company, Inc. Interest rates are shown below: 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

January 1,2005 
January 1 2006 
January 1 I 2007 
January 1 , 2008 
January 1,2009 
January 1,2010 
January 1,201 1 
January 1 I 201 2 
January 1 201 3 
January 1 I 20 14 
January 1,201 5 
January 1 201 6 
January 1 I 20 17 

Year 
3.120% 
3.120% 
3.120% 
3.220% 
3.370% 
3.370% 
3.370% 
3.620% 
4.120% 
4.1 20% 
4-1 20% 
4.120% 
4.1 20% 

Year 
January 1,201 8 
January 1,2019 
January 1,2020 
January 1,2021 
January 1,2022 
January 1,2023 
January 1 2024 
January 1,2025 
January 1,2026 
January 1,2027 
January 1,2028 
January 1,2029 

- Rate 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.250% 
4.250% 
4.620% 
4.620% 
4.620% 
4.620% 
0.046% 
4.620% 
4.620% 

The bonds are secured and payable from an exclusive pledge of a fixed portion of gross revenues 
of the Waterworks System as now or hereafter constituted and additionally secured by a statutory 
lien on the Waterworks System. 

In May 2008 Crittenden Livingston Water District issued Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2008 
(Series C) in the amount of $1,920,000 to current refund revenue bonds 1998, 1991, 1994 & 1996 
issuances. The current refunding met the requirement of an in-substance debt defeasance and 
the revenue bonds were removed from the District's financial statements. 

The bond maturity dates are January 1, 2009-2030. This issue was purchased by Morgan, Keegan 
and Company, Inc. Interest rates are shown below: 

- Year 
January 1, 2009 
January 1,2010 
January 1 I 201 1 
January 1,201 2 
January 1 I 201 3 
January 1,201 4 
January 1,2015 
January 1,2016 
January 1, 2017 
January 1 ,20  18 
January 1,2019 
January 1,2020 
January 1, 2021 

- Rate 
2.350% 
2.550% 
3.050% 
3.050% 
3.300% 
3.300% 
3.550% 
3.550% 
4.050% 
4.050% 
4.050% 
4.050% 
4.050% 

- Year 
January 1,2022 
January 1,2023 
January 1 2024 
January 1,2025 
January 1,2026 
January 1 2027 
January 1,2028 
January 1,2029 
January I I 2030 

- Rate 
4.175% 
4.1 75% 
4.300% 
4.300% 
4.300% 
4.425% 
4.425% 
4.550% 
4.550% 

The bonds are secured and payable from an exclusive pledge of a fixed portion of gross revenues 
of the Waterworks System as now or hereafter constituted and additionally secured by a statutory 
lien on the Waterworks System. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District obtained financing through the Kentucky Rural Water 
Finance Corporation Flexible Term Program for construction of lines. The agreement calls for semi- 
annual interest payments in February and August at a 3.00% interest rate. The short term note was 
repaid with a lease agreement through Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO) for $2,560,000. 
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CRllTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Notes Pavable 

Notes payable consisted of the following at December 31 , 2010: 

Kentucky Area Development District (KADD) note dated June 4, 2004, original amount $205,000, 
payable in ten semiannual payments including principal and interest at 2.5%, beginning October 20, 
2003. This note was repaid in April 2010 with a grant obtained through Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority. 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) note dated November 1, 2001, at 1.8%, payable in 40 
semiannual payments including principal and interest. Loan funds advanced are used on an interim 
basis to finance the construction of extensions, additions, and improvements to the existing 
waterworks system. 

The Fiscal Court of Livingston County, Kentucky, in an Ordinance passed and adopted on August 
24, 201 0, authorized a plan to payoff a short term note of the Crittenden Livingston Water District in 
the amount of $2,500,000 with funds provided to the County by the Kentucky Association of 
Counties Finance Corporation through a financing agreement between the county and KACO. The 
amount of $2,560,000 carries a variable interest rate of 4.15% - 5.00% and matures on February 1, 
2039. 

A detail of the Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks long-term debt is as follows: 

Balance Balance Current 
January 1,2010 

Crittenden Livingston 
Waterworks revenue bonds: 
1995 Issue (Series A) 
1995 Issue (Series B) 
2000 Issue (Series A) 
2000 Issue (Series B) 
2000 Issue (Series C) 
2004 Issue 
20q8 Bonds 
2009 Short-term financing 

737,000 
84,200 

1,804,000 
1,564,000 

631,000 
4,545,000 
1,845,000 
2,720,000 

Notes payable: 
KADD 90,000 
KIA 7,069,529 

Proceeds Repayments 

15,000 
84,200 
30,000 
24,000 
10,000 

159,000 
95,000 

2,720,000 

December 31,2010 

722,000 

1,774,000 
1,540,000 

621,000 
4,386,000 
1,750,000 

Amount Due 

164,000 
90,000 

90,000 
67,818 1,001 '71 1 69,045 

KACO Lease Agreement 2,560,000 2,560,000 
Total $ 15,089,729 $ 2,560,000 $ 3,295,018 $ 14,354,711 $ 323,045 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Annual debt service requirements for long-term debt to maturity are as follows: 
Year ending 

December 31 Principal Interest 
201 1 $ 323,045 $ 285,492 
201 2 467,293 485,735 
201 3 485,564 577,864 
201 4 499,858 560,147 
201 5 513,175 541,298 

201 6-2020 2,833,465 2,392,727 
2021 -2025 3,081,292 1,792,674 
2026-2030 2,759,000 1,133,090 
2031 -2035 1,697,000 650,375 
2036-2040 1,695,000 232,653 

$ 14,354,711 $ 8,652,053 

6 RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District is a participant in the County Employees Retirement 
System (CERS), a cost-sharing, multi-employer public employee retirement system. CERS 
provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be 
extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Cost of living adjustments 
are provided at the discretion of the state legislature. Kentucky Retirement Systems issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for CERS. That report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, 
Perimeter Park West, 12600 Louisville Road, Frankfort, KY 40601-6124 or by calling (502) 564- 
4646. 

CERS participants have a fully vested interest after completion of sixty (60) months of service, 
twelve (12) months of which are current service. At a minimum, terminated employees are 
refunded their contributions with credited interest at three (3) percent compounded annually 
through June 30, 1980, six (6) percent thereafter through June 30, 1986, and four (4) percent 
thereafter. The Board determines and may amend contribution rates, per Kentucky Revised 
Statute, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended 
contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial 
basis adopted by the Board. 

Employees are required to contribute 5% of their creditable compensation by State statute. The 
district is required by the same statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay 
benefits when due. Employer contributions rates are set July 1 for the upcoming fiscal year. 
Employer rates were set at 16.93% effective July 1, 2010, 16.16% effective July 1, 2009 and 
13.50% effective July 1, 2008. Contributions for the County Employees Retirement System are as 
fallows: 

Annual 
Reauired Annual Percentage 

Year Ended 
December 31,2010 
December 31 , 2009 
December 31,2008 

Contibution Contribution Contribution 
$ 83,058 $ 83,058 100% 
$ 65,125 $ 65,125 100% 
$ 75,078 $ 75,078 100% 
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CRllTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7 COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 

It is the policy of the District to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses to which it is 
exposed. These risks include general liability and fidelity bond coverage. Settled claims have not 
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

8 INTEREST EXPENSE 

The District incurred interest cost in 2010 of $581,790. The entire amount has been recognized 
as a current operating expense. 

9 KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING 

The District had a grant assistance agreement with Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. Grant 
funds are to be used f,or debt reduction and interest expense assistance. The total funded under 
the grant agreement was $900,000. A total of $428,071 was received during the year ending 
December 31, 2009 and was used for principal and interest payments dire during the year. The 
District received $178,747 in March 2010 which was used to payoff the 19958 bonds and the 
KADD loan. The balance on the original grant of $293,182 was drawn in October 2010 and used 
to pay the USDA payment due in January 201 1 ,  
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CRI’TTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSEE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Yeard Ending December 31,2010 

Variance with 
Final Budaet 

- O r i m  Positive 
Budaet. Final Budaet Actual 1NeaativeI 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Other income 
Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Salary expenses 
Water treatment expenses 
Maintenance expenses 
General operating expenses 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-operating income (expenses): 
Tap-on fees 
Interest revenue 
Proceeds from grants 
Donated capital 
Loss on debt extinguishment 
Interest expense 
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 
Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 
Net assets, end of year 

$ 1,949,000 $ 1,949,000 $ 2,008,065 $ 59,065 
45,835 (4,165) 

1,999,000 1,999,000 2,053,900 54,900 
50,000 50,000 

61 3,875 613,875 568,958 44,917 
156,500 156,500 190,067 (33,567) 
50,800 50,800 79,585 (28,785) 

134,300 134,300 167,433 (33,133) 
619,352 (619,352) 
31,620 - (31,620) 

955 , 475 955,475 I ,657,015 (701,540) 

1,043,525 1,043,525 396,885 (646,640) 

30,000 30,000 21,100 (8,900) 
2,099 2,099 

477,076 477,076 
1,693 1,693 

(581,790) (581,790) 
30,000 30,000 (88,772) (1 09,822) 

$ 1,073,525 $ 1,073,525 308,113 $ (756,462) 

(8,950) 

a, 495,572 
$ 8,803,685 

See accompanying notes and accountant’s report. Page 19 
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! 

CRlTTENDEN/LIVINGSTON CO. WATER DISTRICT BUDGET AMENDED FOR 2011 
REVENUES~ 

WATER SALES 2,000,000 
MISCELLANEOUS OPERATING REVENUE 52,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,052,000 

TREATMENT - ELECTRICITY 60,000 
PUMPING - ELECTRICITY 21,000 
BUILDING &GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 7,000 
TREATMENT - CHEMKALS 73,000 
SALARIES -TREATMENT PLANT 133,000 
SALARIES TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION 136,000 
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES - TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION 6,000 
WATER PLANT SUPPLIES 6,000 
R&M WATER MAINS & OLD METERS 35,000 
MAINTENANCE - WATER PLANT 40,000 
LAB TESTING 9,000 

TRANSMISSION & Dl!STRIBUTION 

TOTAL TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION 526,000 

SALARIES - ADMINISTRATION 115,000 
OPERATING EXPENSES 

COMMISSIONERS EXPENSE 6,000 
PAYROLL TAX EXPENSE 30,000 
UNEMPLOYMENT 2,500 
RETIREMENT 62,000 
EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 51,000 
ELECTRIC OFFICE 2,400 
SUPPLIES OFFICE 12.000 
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT 12,000 
COMPUTER MA1 NTENANCE 500 
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE - VEHICLES 8,000 
INSURANCE - PROPERTY & LIABILITY 31,000 
INSURANCE - BOND 1,500 
FUEL 19,000 
SEMINAR 1,500 
BANK CHARGES 3,400 
PROFESSIONAL FEES 24,000 
COMMUNICATION & POSTAGE 20,000 
WATER OFFICE 375 
PROPANE OFFICE 1,800 
TRAVEL 1,000 
TRASH DISPOSAL 3.200 
BAD DEBTS 4,000 
MISCELLANEOUS 2,000 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 413.175 



NONOPERATING RWENUE 
INTEREST EARNED 2,000 
TAP ON FEFS 20,000 .. .. -. - - --- 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 22,000 
NONOPERATING (NONCASH) 

DEPRECIATION 616,488 
AMORlZATlON 12,348 
INTEREST EXPENSE 652,656 

TOTAL NONOPERAllNG INONCASH1 EXPENSES 1.281.492 
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EWLSON & ELL1 
CERTIFIED PUBLK ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT A KIDITCBR'S REPORT 

Members of the Board of Commissioners 
Crittenden-L,ivingston County Water District 
620 East Main Street 
Salem, KY 42078 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Crittenden-Livingston County Water District (the Water 
District), as of and for the year ended December 3 1 ,  20 10, which collectively comprise the Water District's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 'These financial st.atements are the responsibility of the Water District's 
management" Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fiiinancial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gfiinerally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrment ,)auditing Standards, issued by the Coinptroller General of' 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfoim the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit ;iv.lso includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above preseiit fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Crittenden-Livingston County Water District as of I'lecember 3 1,2010, and the respective changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the IJnited States of America. 

I n  accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 25,20 1 1, on our consideration 
of the Water District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion 
on the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Azrdibhg Stundards and should be reEid in conjunction with this report in considei ing the results 
of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 2 through, 4 and 19 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential pa;i-t of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing sti.mdards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the lrasic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic fulaiicial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with mfficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

e 
July 25,201 1 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31,2010 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District ("District") offlixs Management's Discussion and Analysis to 
provide an overview and analysis of the District's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 
2010. To fully understand the entire scope of the Distric::t's financial activities, this information should be 
read in conjunction with the financial statements provideal in this document. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities by $8,803,685 at December 31, 2010. Of this amount 
$594,002 is restricted and $7,539,292 is invested in capital assets net of the related debt, leaving 
unrestricted net assets of $670,391. 

The District's net assets increased for the year by $308,'1113. The District received grant funds during the 
2010 year in the amount of $477,076. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's financial statements. 
The District is authorized under Kentucky Revised Statutes and constitutes a governmental subdivision of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky, The District's finaricial report includes only the activities of the 
Crittenden Livingston Water District. 

The District's financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE!iii 

The District's basic financial statements are comprised (If two components: I) fund financial statements, 
and 2) notes to the financial statements. In addition, this report contains other supplementary information 
to provide the reader additional information about the District. 

Fund Financial Statements - The focus of fund financial statements is directed to specific activities of a 
governmental entity rather than the entity as a whole. 'The District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting. All activities of the District are reported in the enterprise fund, a 
proprietary fund type. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information a::; the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. Because the District consists of only a proprietary fund, reconciliations of the fund 
financial statements to government-wide financial statemlsnts are not necessary. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 5 - 8 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements - These notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements 
can be found on pages 9 - 18 of this report. 

Supplementary Information - Supplementary information can be found on page 19 of this report. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District's financial position. 
The District's assets exceeded liabilities by $8,803,685 at December 31,2010. 

During 201 0, the District's capital assets decreased $587,304 and total long-term debt decreased by 
$756,104. These changes were accompanied by an increase in unrestricted net assets of $200,999. 
The District's overall financial position and results of operations for the past two years are summarized as 
follows, based on the information included in the financial statements. 

Business-type Activities 
- 201 0 - 2009 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Restricted assets 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Long-term liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital, net of debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Operating revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating income 

Grant receipts 
Tap-on fees 
Donated capital 
Interest revenue 
Loss on debt extinguishment 
Interest expense 
Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 
Net assets, end of year 

$ 980,072 $ 928,179 
21,894,003 22,481,307 

119,325 107,632 
309,453 259,999 

23,302,853 23,777,117 

13,946.807 14,702,911 
552,361 578,634 

14,499,168 15,281,545 

7,539,292 7,391,578 
594,002 634,602 
670; 39 1 469,392 

8,803,685 8,495,572 

2,053,900 1,961,875 
(1,657,015) (I ,741,999) 

396,885 219,876 

477,076 463,708 
21,100 29,600 

1,693 11,297 
2,099 1,527 

(8,950) 
(590,246) (581,790) 

308,113 1 35,762 

8,495,572 8,359,810 
!§ 8,803,685 * $ 8,495,572 

A portion of the District's net assets ($7,539,292) reflects its investment in net plant, such as water tanks, 
buildings, equipment, and distribution systems, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those 
assets. The district uses these assets to provide services to customers; consequently, these assets are 
not available for future spending. Resources needed to repay the outstanding debt shown on the balance 
sheet must come from other sources such as operations, since the assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these long-term liabilities. 
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The original budget and the final budget passed by the board anticipated operating revenues of 
$1,999,000 and operating expenses of $955,475. Actual operating revenues were over-budget $54,900, 
actual operating expenses were over-budget by $701,540 due in large part to the absence of depreciation 
in the budget, Actual non-operating revenues and expenses were over-budget $109,822 for a total 
negative budget variance of $756,462. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The District's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2010 was $21,894,003. During the year 
ended December 31, 2010, the District capitalized new meters, There were no other significant asset 
purchases during 2010. 

7 201 0 7 2009 
Land $ 58,267 $ 5 I ,267 
Machinery 27,680,795 27,658,107 
Buildings 51,928 5?,928 
Furniture & fixtures 46,383 44,023 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (5 , 943,370) (5,324,019) 
Total capital assets $ 21,894,003 $ 22,481,306 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

The District's long-term debt at December 31 , 2010 was $14,031,666. The District entered into a lease 
agreement through Livingston County Fiscal Court for KACO Lease Agreement. Proceeds were used to 
retire the 2009 KY Rural Water short-term financing arrangement shown below. A schedule of the 
District's long-term debt at December 31, 2010 follows: 

Revenue Bond Series 1995A 
Revenue Bond Series 1995B 
Revenue Bond Series 2000A 
Revenue Bond Series 20008 
Revenue Bond Series 2000C 
Revenue Bond Series 2004 
Revenue Bond Series 2008C 
2009 KY Rural Water 
KIA Loan 
KADD Loan 
KACO Loan 
Total long-term debt 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

- 2010 
$ 722,000 

1,774,000 
1,540,000 

621,000 
4,222,000 
1,660,000 

932,666 

- 

* 

2,560,000 
$ , 14,031,666 

- 2009 
$ 737,000 

84,200 
1 , 804,000 
I ,  564,000 

631,000 
4,386,000 
1,750,000 
2,720,000 
1,001,711 

70,000 

$ 14,747,911 
* 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Crittenden Livingston Water 
District's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions or requests for 
additional information may be addressed to Ronnie Slayden, Superintendent, Crittenden Livingston Water 
District, 620 East Main Street, Salem, KY 42078. 
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Crittenden-Livingston County Water District 
Statement of Net Assets - Praprletary Fund 

December 31,20110 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Current maturities of long-term debt 
Accounts payable trade 
Payroll liabilities 
Tenant deposits payable 
Interest payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Notes payable 
Bonds payable 
Deferred Bond Costs 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Net assets invested in capital 
Net assets restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted net assets 

Total net assets 

$ 323,045 
21,978 
19,043 
9,780 

178,516 
552,361 

3,492,866 
.1 O,539,000 

(84,859) 
13,946,807 

14,499,168 

7,539,292 
594,002 
670,391 

$ 8,803,685 
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Crittenden-Livingston County Water District 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended December 31,2010 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 
Other income 

Total operating revenue 

Operating Expenses 
Salary expenses 
Water treatment expenses 
Maintenance expenses 
General operating expenses 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 
Interest revenue 
Interest expense 
Loss on debt extinguishment 

Total nonoperating expenses 

Capital Contributions 
Proceeds from grants 
Donated capital 
Tap-on fees 

Total capital contributions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See accompanying notes and auditor's report. 

$ 2,008,065 
45,835 

2,053,900 

568,958 
190,067 
79,585 
167,433 
619,352 

1,657,015 
31,620- 

396,885 

2,099 
(581,790) 
(8,950) 

(588,641) 

477,076 
1,693 
21,100 
499,869 

308,113 

8,495,572 

$ 8,803,685 
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CRITTENDEN-LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS"*PROPRIETARY FUND 

Year Ended December 31,201 0 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for services 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Tap-on fees 
Proceeds from grants 
Acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment 
New debt acquired 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 
Debt issuance Costs 
Loss on debt extinguishment 

Net cash provided (used) for capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided (used) by Investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents - current 
Restricted cash - current 
Restricted cash - noncurrent 
Restricted investments - noncurrent 

Reconciliation of Operating income to Net Cash Provided by Operations: 
Operating income 
Adjustments-operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Grants receivable 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Customer deposits 
Accrued liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accompanying notes and auditor's report. 

$ 2,066,054 
(432,186) 
(597,450) 

I ,036,418 

21,100 
477,076 
(31,897) 

2,560,000 
(3,295,018) 

(565,554) 
(133,000) 

4,658 

(962,635L 

2,099 

2,099 

75,882 

71 3,040 

$ 788,922 

$ 85,375 
138,451 
11 9,325 
445,771 

$ 788,922 

$ 396,885 

650,972 

(4,388) 
636 

16,046 

4,263 
496 

(28,492) 

$ 1,036,418 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Activity - The Crittenden Livingston Water District j1i a county water district supported by funds 
derived from the sale of water and is operated by a District Board. The District is authorized under 
Kentucky Revised Statutes and constitutes a governmental subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky. The District is located in Salem, Kentucky and primarily serves the Crittenden and 
Livingston County, Kentucky area. 

Principies determining scope of reporting entity - The District‘s financial report includes only the 
funds of the District The District has no oversight responsibility for any other governmental entity 
and is not included in any other governmental “repoirting entity” as defined by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board pronouncement. The District‘s Board members are appointed equally 
by the County Judge Executives of Crittenden and Livingston counties, and they have decision 
making authority, the authority to set rates, the power to designate management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 

Basis of accounting - The District is presented as an enterprise fund. The financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measuremerit focus and the accrual basis of accounting 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when the liability is incurred or econowiic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized 
when the exchange takes place. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met 

The District follows all pronouncements of the Government Accounting Standards Board, and has 
elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non- 
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for water 
services. Operating expenses for enterprise fund!,; include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capilal assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating rwenues and expenses. 

Accounts receivable - The direct write-off method was used for recording un-collectible accounts. 
No allowance for un-collectible accounts was deemed to be needed. The District grants credit to 
customers, substantially all of whom are residents of Crittenden and Livingston counties 

Utility plant - The utility plant is carried at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income 
for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to income as incurred; significant 
betterments are capitalized. Contributions from customers for the purpose of purchasing service 
connections to the utility plant are recorded as contril:)utions when they are received. Depreciation 
on contributed assets is recorded as an expense in the statement of revenue and expense. Capital 
assets are depreciated over the following useful lives: 

Buildings - 10 to 50 years 
Transmission Lines - 5 to 50 years 
Plant Equipment - 5 to IO years 
Vehicles - 5 years 

Pumping Equipment - 5 to 40 years 
Metliinrs - 5 to 10 years 
Office Equipment - 5 to 10 years 

Intangible assets - Financing and bond issue costs ziire being amortized over the life of the debt on 
the straight-line basis. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

‘l SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to mako estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Use of RestrictedlUnrestricted Net Assets - When ijn expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted assets are available, the District‘s policy is to apply restricted assets 
first. 

\ 

Revenue Recognition - Operating revenues are recognized in the period that water is supplied to 
participants and others. All other revenues are reflected in non-operating income and are 
recognized when earned. 

Taxes on income - The Crittenden Livingston Watei District is exempt from paying income taxes 
under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code, 

Budget - The District adopts an annual budget prepared under a basis of accounting in 
accordance with provisions of the Public Service RegiliOatory Commission. 

Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of the sRatement of cash flows, the District considers 
all highly liquid investments with original maturity of Bhree months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents. 

2 RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Crittenden Livingston Water Sinking Fund and t h e  Rural Water Bond Issue Sinking Fund - 
The sinking funds were established for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the Water 
Revenue Bonds. The bond ordinances require that the amount deposited each month equals one- 
sixth of the next succeeding interest requirement and one-twelfth of the principal requirements 
becoming due on the note on the next succeeding Jainuary I. At December 31 , 2010 the balance 
of the Sinking Fund was $138,451. 

Depreciation Reserve - The bond ordinances requin? Crittenden Livingston Water District to make 
monthly contributions to this fund after observing the priority of deposits into the Sinking Fund. The 
funds in the Depreciation Fund can be expended for the purpose of paying the cost of unusual or 
extra-ordinary maintenance, repairs, renewals or replacements, and the cost of constructing 
additions and improvements to the system. Under the 1995 ordinance the District is to make $1,872 
monthly deposits until the Depreciation fund reaches 26224,640 and shall be maintained throughout 
the life of the bonds. The 1995 bond ordinance amends all previous ordinances. Under the 2000 
ordinance the District is to make $2,115 monthly deposits over the life of the loan in addition to the 
requirement of all previous ordinances. At December 31, 2010 the balance of the Depreciation 
Reserve Fund was $109,545. 

Crittenden Livingston Tenant Deposit Fund - This account is set aside to account for customer 
deposits. At December 31 , 2010 the balance of the Crittenden Livingston Tenant Deposit Fund was 
$9,780. 

Constructlon Funds - Occasionally, Crittenden Livingston Water District is involved in various on- 
going construction projects. A bank account has been established for each project referred to as 
“Phases”. Monies deposited to the construction accounts is reserved for construction of the 
appropriate phase. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2 RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Regions Sinking Funds - The District maintains sinking accounts with Regions Bank for payments 
on the 2004 and 2008 bond issuances and the 2009 short term financing which was retired in 2010. 
A monthly amount is transferred from the Rural Watw Sinking Fund to meet the annual principal 
and interest obligations related to the previously mentioned financing. The balance held at Regions 
Bank for these purposes at December 31,2010 was $445,771. 

3 DEPOSITS 

The District has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40 
effective July 1, 2005, GASB 40 is designed to inform financial statement users about deposit 
and investment risks that could effect a governmerit's ability to provide services and meet its 
obligations as they become due. There are risks inherent in all deposits and investments, and 
GASB believes that the disclosures required by this 3tatement provide users of governmental 
financial statements with information to assess common risks inherent in deposit and investment 
transactions. Deposit and investment resources often represent significant assets of the 
governmental fund. These resources are necessary for the delivery of governmental services 
and programs GASB 40, as it applies to the district, includes disclosure of the following: 

Risks related to custodial credit risk of bank deposits; 

0 

Interest rate risk; and 
0 

Risks related to custodial credit risk of deposits; 
Risks related to custodial credit risk of investments; 

Deposit and investment policies related to those risks. 

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that a government will not be able to recover its 
deposits, investments, or collateral from the bank in the event of bank failure. 

As of December 31, 201 0, the carrying amount of District's deposits was $788,772 and the bank 
balance of $794,994 was categorized as follows: 

Insured by FDIC $ 508,902 
Uninsured and collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution 
in the district's name 286,092 

Total $ 794,994 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in 
interest rates. 

Cash on deposit at Regions Bank is held in a AAA money market fund at Regions Bank. The 
investments serve as the bond sinking fund for the 2004, 2008 and 2009 bond series 
investments are held in Federated Treasury Obligations until required for debt payment. The 
investments are collateralized through the Trust Department at Regions Bank and consist of the 
following: 

Carrying Market 

Treasury Obligations $ 445,771 $ - ' - - 4; - $ 445,771 $ 445,771 

The district's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
district at December 31, 2010. The categories are described as follows: 

11,- 
Category 

3 Amount Value - 2 -1.1- 
1 Rating 

AAA 

Page 11 



CRllTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCVU STATEMENTS 

3 DEPOSITS (continued) 

Category 1 - Insured or registered, with securities held by the entity or its agent in the 
entity’s name. 

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust 
department or agent in the unit’s name. 

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, in its 
trust department or agent but not in the entity’s name. 

Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS 66.480) authorize Kentucky municipalities to invest in: 
(a) Obligations of the U. S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities. Such investments may 

be accomplished through repurchase agreements reached with national or state banks 
chartered in Kentucky; 

(b) Bonds or certificates of indebtedness af the state of Kentucky, agencies and 
instrumentalities; 

(c) Savings and loan associations insured by the U. S. government; 
(d) Interest-bearing deposits in national or state banks chartered in Kentucky and insured by 

an agency of the U. S. government; 
(e) Deposit accounts with banking institutions; 
(0 State treasurer investment pool. 

The District does not have a deposit policy. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for Crittenden Livingston Water District for the year ended December 31, 
201 0, was as follows: 

Balance 
Balance December 31 , 

January 1,2(:E10 ,"- Additions Deletions 201 0 
Capital assets being depreciated: 
Lake and river intake 
Pumping equipment 
Water treatment equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Distribution reservoirs and pipe 
Small equipment 
Transmission and distribution mains 
Lab equipment 
Power operated equipment 
Services 
Meters and installation 
Communication equipment 
Hydrants 
Office furniture and fixtures 
Office building 

Subtotal 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Lake and river intake 
Pumping equipment 
Water treatment equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Distribution reservoirs and pipe 
Small equipment 
Transmission and distribution mains 
Lab equipment 
Power operated equipment 
Services 
Meters and installation 
Communication equipment 
Hydrants 
Office furniture and fixtures 
Office building 

Subtotal 
Capital assets being depreciated, net 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Capital assets, net 
Land 

$ 888,4'11 
135,132 

4,402,784 
153,114 
809,623 

17,779 
14,069,1'14 

4,080 
65,632 

6 , 01 2,OL19 
861,954 

9,456 
228,940 
44 , 0:23 

$ - 
- 
c 

- 
- 

2,151 - - 
20,537 

I 

2,360 

888,411 
135,132 

4,402,784 
153,114 
809,623 

17,779 
14,069,114 

6,231 
65,632 

6,OI 2,089 
882,491 

9,456 
228,940 46,383 

51,928 - . 51,928 

- 27,779,107 
."_I 

25,048 27,754,0139 

(51,2*42) (1 7,768) (69,OI 0) 
(28,365) (24,2 '1 6) (4,149) 

(1,010,034) (88,129) 
(145,916) 
(247,612) (231,420) (1 6,192) 

(2,955,560) (2,674,176) (281,382) 

- (1,098,163) 

(14,871) (232) I (1 5,103) 

- (4,177) - - (65,632) 
(71 2,130) (1 71,551) (883,681) 
(278,581 ) (24,682) - (303,263) - (5,857) 

., (59,495) 

- (22,279) 

(5,324,011A (619,352) .. (5,943,371) 
22,430,040 (594,304) c 21,835,736 

(1 38,984) (6,932) 

(4 , 0 80) (97) 
(65 , 632) 

(5,308) (549) 
(54,702) (4,793) 
(37,758) (1,500) 
(20, a s 2  (I ,396) 

(39,258) 

51 467 7,000 - 58,267 
$ 22,481,3107 $ (587,304) !$ - $ 21,894,003 

Depreciation charged to income was $619,352 during the year ending December 31,2010. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTOM WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT 

Bonds Pavable 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Watetworkh; Revenue Bonds of 1995 (Series A) were 
issued in the amount of $884,000 to finance the cos1 of the Phase 5 construction project (system 
additions). The bond maturity dates are January I, 1998-2035. The interest rate is 4.5%. This 
issue was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Watetworks Revenue Bonds of 1995 (Series B) were 
issued in the amount of $100,000 to finance the cost of the Phase 5 construction project (system 
additions). The bond maturity dates are January 1, 1998-2035. The interest rate is 5.13%. This 
issue was purchased by United States Department 011 Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. The 1995 Series B was refunded in April 2010 through grant proceeds obtained from 
Kentucky infrastructure Authority. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterwork:; Revenue Bonds of 2000 (Series A) in the 
amount of $2,000,000 were issued to finance the COGt of the Phase 6b construction project (water 
plant). The bond maturity dates are January 1 , 20031-2040. The interest rate is 4.5%. This issue 
was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterwork:i Revenue Bonds of 2000 (Series 8) in the 
amount of $1,725,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 6b construction project (water 
plant). The bond maturity dates are January 1 , 2003-2040. The interest rate is 4 75%. This issue 
was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworki; Revenue Bonds of 2000 (Series C) in the 
amount of $700,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 6b construction project (water 
plant). The bond maturity dates are January I, 2003-2040. The interest rate is 4.5%. This issue 
was purchased by United States Department of Agriculture Rural Economic and Community 
Development. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2004 (Series D) in the 
amount of $4,998,000 were issued to finance the cost of the Phase 9 construction project (system 
additions). The bond maturity dates are January 1, 2004-2029. This issue was purchased by 
Morgan, Keegan and Company, Inc. Interest rates ani? shown below: 

Page 14 



CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DETRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

January 1,2005 
January 1,2006 
January I, 2007 
January 1,2008 
January 1,2009 
January 1 , 2010 
January I , 201 1 
January 1 , 2012 
January I ,  201 3 
January 1,2014 
January 1, 2015 
January 1 , 2016 
January I, 2017 

__. Rate 
3.120% 
3.120% 
3,120% 
3.220% 
3.370% 
3.370% 
3.370% 
3.620% 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.120% 

- Year 
January 1,2018 
Jmuary 1,2019 
January 1, 2020 
January 1,2021 
January I ,  2022 
Jmuary I , 2023 
January 1,2024 
January 1, 2025 
January 1, 2026 
January 1 , 2027 
January 1,2028 
January I, 2029 

- Rate 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.120% 
4.250% 
4.250% 
4.620% 
4.620% 
4.620% 
4,620% 
0.046% 
4.620% 
4.620% 

The bonds are secured and payable from an exclusiws pledge of a fixed portion of gross revenues 
of the Waterworks System as now or hereafter constituted and additionally secured by a statutory 
lien on the Waterworks System. 

In May 2008 Crittenden Livingston Water District iesued Waterworks Revenue Bonds of 2008 
(Series C) in the amount of $1,920,000 to current refund revenue bonds 1998, 1991, 1994 8 1996 
issuances. The current refunding met the requiremcent of an in-substance debt defeasance and 
the revenue bonds were removed from the District's Tinancia1 statements. 

The bond maturity dates are January I, 2009-2030. This issue was purchased by Morgan, Keegan 
and Company, Inc. Interest rates are shown below: 

L__ Year 
January 1, 2009 
January 1,2010 
January 1, 201 1 
January 1,2012 
January 1 , 201 3 
January 1,2014 
January 1,201 5 
January 1,2016 
January 1,2017 
January 1, 2018 
January 1,2019 
January 1, 2020 
January I, 2021 

I__ Rate 
2.350% 
2.550% 
3.050% 
3.050% 
3.300% 
3.300% 
3.550% 
3.550% 
4.050% 
4.050% 
4.050% 
4.050% 
4.050% 

- Year 
January 1 , 2022 
Jmuary 1, 2023 
January I, 2024 
Jenuary 1, 2025 
January 1,2026 
Jainuary I, 2027 
January 1, 2028 
January I ,  2029 
January 1, 2030 

&& 
4.175% 
4.175% 
4.300% 
4.300% 
4.300% 
4.425% 
4.425% 
4.550% 
4.550% 

The bonds are secured and payable from an exclusive pledge of a fixed portion of gross revenues 
of the Waterworks System as now or hereafter consRituted and additionally secured by a statutory 
lien on the Waterworks System. 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District obtained financing through the Kentucky Rural Water 
Finance Corporation Flexible Term Program for construction of lines. The agreement calls for semi- 
annual interest payments in February and August at n 3.00% interest rate. The short term note was 
repaid with a lease agreement through Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO) for $2,560,000. 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTOM WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Notes Payable 

Notes payable consisted of the following at December 31 , 2010: 

Kentucky Area Development District (KADD) note dated June 4, 2004, original amount $205,000, 
payable in ten semiannual payments including principal and interest at 2.5%, beginning October 20, 
2003. This note was repaid in April 2010 with a grant obtained through Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority. 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) note dated thJovember 1, 2001, at 1.8%, payable in 40 
semiannual payments including principal and interest. Loan funds advanced are used on an interim 
basis to finance the construction of extensions, additions, and improvements to the existing 
waterworks system. 

The Fiscal Court of Livingston County, Kentucky, in an Ordinance passed and adopted on August 
24, 201 0, authorized a plan to payoff a short term notre of the Crittenden Livingston Water District in 
the amount of $2,500,000 with funds provided to ,the County by the Kentucky Association of 
Counties Finance Corporation through a financing agrleement between the wunty and KACO. 'The 
amount of $2,560,000 carries a variable interest rate ef 4.15% - 5.00% and matures on February 1, 
2039, 

A detail of the Crittenden Livingston Water District Waterworks long-term debt is as follows: 

Balance 
January 1,2010 

Crittenden Livingston 
Waterworks revenue bonds: 
1995 Issue (Series A) 
1995 Issue (Series 8) 
2000 Issue (Series A) 
2000 issue (Series B) 
2000 Issue (Series C) 
2004 Issue 
2008 Bonds 
2009 Short-term financing 

Notes payable: 
KADD 
KIA 

737,000 
84,200 

1,804,000 
1,564,000 

631,000 
4,545,000 
1,845,000 
2,720,000 

90,000 
1,069,529 

Balance Current 
Proceeds Iy Repayments December 31,2010 Amount Due 

- 15,000 722,000 

30,000 1,774,000 
24,000 1,540,000 
10,000 621,000 

159,000 4,386,000 164,000 
95,000 1,750,000 90,000 

84,200 

2,720,000 

90,000 
67,818 1,001,711 69,045 

KACO Lease Agreement 2,560,000,n, 2,660,000 
Total $ 15,089,729 $ 2,560,000,w $ 3,295,018 $ 14,354,711 $ 323,045 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Annual debt service requirements for long-term debt to maturity are as follows: 
Year endinq 
December31 Princiml Interest 

201 1 $ 323,045 $ 390,392 
2012 467,293 485,735 
201 3 485,564 577,864 
2014 499,858 560,147 
201 5 513,175 541,298 

201 62020 2,833,485 2,392,727 
2021-2025 3,081,292 1,7!92,674 
20262030 2,759,000 I ,  133,09O 
2031 -2035 1,697,000 650,375 
2036-2040 1,695,000 232,653 

$ 14,354,711 $ 8,756,953 

6 RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Crittenden Livingston Water District is a participant in the County Employees Retirement 
System (CERS), a cost-sharing, multi-employer public employee retirement system. CERS 
provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be 
extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Cost of living adjustments 
are provided at the discretion of the state legislature. Kentucky Retirement Systems issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for CERS. That report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, 
Perimeter Park West, 12600 Louisville Road, Frankfort, KY 40601-6124 or by calling (502) 564- 
4646. 

CERS participants have a fully vested interest after completion of sixty (60) months of service, 
twelve (12) months of which are current service. At a minimum, terminated employees are 
refunded their contributions with credited interest at three (3) percent compounded annually 
through June 30, 1980, six (6) percent thereafter through June 30, 1986, and four (4) percent 
thereafter. The Board determines and may amend contribution rates, per Kentucky Revised 
Statute, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended 
contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial 
basis adopted by the Board. 

Employees are required to contribute 5% of their creditable compensation by State statute. The 
district is required by the same statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay 
benefits when due. Employer contributions rates are set July 1 for the upcoming fiscal year. 
Employer rates were set at 16.93% effective July 1, 2010, 16.16% effective July I, 2009 and 
13.50% effective July 1 , 2008. Contributions for the County Employees Retirement System are as 
follows: 

Annual 
Required Annual Percentage 

Year Ended Contribution Contribution Contribution 
December31,2010 $ 83,058 $ 83,058 100% 
Decernber31,2009 $ 65,125 $ 65,125 100% 
Decernber31,2008 $ 75,078 $ 75,078 100% 
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CRITTENDEN LIVINGSTON WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7 COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 

It is the policy of the District to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses to which it is 
exposed. These risks include general lability and fidielity bond coverage. Settled claims have not 
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

8 INTEREST EXPENSE 

The District incurred interest cost in 2010 of $581,790, The entire amount has been recognized 
as a current operating expense. 

9 KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING 

The District had a grant assistance agreement with Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. Grant 
funds are to be used for debt reduction and interest 'expense assistance. The total funded under 
the grant agreement was $900,000. A total of $428,071 was received during the year ending 
December 31, 2009 and was used for principal and interest payments due during the year. The 
District received $178,747 in March 2010 which W:.NS used to payoff the 19958 bonds and the 
KADD loan. The balance on the original grant of $2$13,182 was drawn in October 2010 and used 
to pay the USDA payment due in January 201 1. 
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Crittenden-Livingston County Vlr'ater District 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSEE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Year Ending December 31,201 0 

Variance with 
Final Budaet 

Positive 
INeaativel 

Oriainal 
Budaet Final Budoet Actual 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Other income 
Total operating revenues 

$ 1,949,000 $ 1,949,000 $ 2,008,065 $ 59,065 
50,000 -.,, 50,000 45,835 (4,165) 

1,999,000 1,999,000 2,053,900 54,900 

Operating expenses: 
Salary expenses 61 3,875 613,875 568,958 44,917 
Water treatment expenses 156,500 156,500 190,067 (33,567) 
Maintenance expenses 50,800 50,800 79,585 (28,785) 
General operating expenses 134,300 134,300 167,433 (33,133) 

Amortization -, 31,620 (31,620) 
Total operating expenses 955,475 955,475 1,657,OI 5 (701,540) 

Depreciation - 61 9,352 (61 9,352) 

Operating income 1,043,525 1,043,525 396,885 (646,640) 

Non-operating income (expenses): 
Tap-on fees 
Interest revenue 
Proceeds from grants 
Donated capital 
Loss on debt extinguishment 
Interest expense 
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 
Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 
Net assets, end of year 

30,000 30,000 21,100 (8,900) - 2,099 2,099 
- * 477,076 477,076 

- 1,693 1,693 
- - (8,950) (8,950) 
* - (581,790) ___ ( 581,790) 

_I(p- 

30,000 30,000 ( 88,772 1 (I 18,772) 
$ 1,073,525 $,073,525 308,113 $ (765,412) 

-I 

0,495,572 
$ 8,803,685 

See accompanying notes and auditor's report Page 19 



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPOI?TING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PER:FORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 

AUDiTlNG STAl'VDARDS 

'To the Members of the Board of Commissioners 
Crittenden-Livingston County Water District 
620 East Main Street 
Salem, KY 42078 

We have audited the financial statements of the Crittenden-Livi ton County Water District, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated 25, 201 I. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Corriiptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Crittenderi.-Livingston County Water District's internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Crittenden-Livingston 
County Water District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Crittenden-Livingston County Water District'e; internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internat confrol exists when the design or operatietn of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was ,far the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknes:;es, as defined above. However, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, descli'ibed in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Responses as item 2010-1 that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. A 
Significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiercies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Crittenden-Livingston County Water District's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed !tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providiri an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express su an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reporkd under Government Auditing Standards and which are 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Respoirises as items 2010-1 I 

Crittenden-Livingston County Water District's response to thG: findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit Crittenden-Livingston County Water District's 
response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, commissioners, others within the entity, and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 
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Crittenden-Livingston County Water District 

Schedule of Findings and Responses relating to both Internall Controls over Financial Reporting and to Compliance 

December 31,2010 

201 0-1 Bond Sinking Funds and Depreciation Fund Deposit Requirements: 

CONDITION: We noted that the various bond ordinances requins that an amount equal to one-sixth (116) of the next 
succeeding interest requirement and one-twelffh (1/12) of the principal requirements coming due on the note on the next 
succeeding January I ,  be deposited into a bond sinking fund. During the year, deposits into the sinking fund were 
insufficient to meet the requirements of the bond ordinances. 

The 1995 Bond ordinance requires the District to make monthly contributions to the Depreciation Fund after observing the 
priority of the Sinking Fund, Under the 1995 Ordinance the District is to make $1,872 monthly deposits until the 
Depreciation Fund reaches $224,640 and shall be maintained thmughout the life of the bonds. In addition, the 2000 Bond 
ordinance requires a monthly deposit of $2,175 over the life of this loan in addition to the requirements of all other 
ordinances. As of December 31, 2010 the Depreciation Reserve Fund was $109,545. 

CRITERIA: Resolutions in various Revenue Bonds issued by the District. 

CAUSE OF CONDITION: The District has not complied with the various monthly Sinking Fund and Depreciation Fund 
deposit requirements, 

EFFECT OF CONDITION: The deposits into the Sinking Funds and Depreciation Fund were insufficient to meet the 
requirements of the various bond ordinances. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Crittenden-Livingston County Water District should routinely make the deposits required by 
the covenants of the various Bond Ordinances. 

OFFICIAL‘S RESPONSE: The District’s Chairman of the Board of Commissioners said that the deposits would be made 
to the Sinking Funds and Depreciation Fund if sufficient revenue% were available each month. 

EVALUATION OF OFFICIAL’S COMMENTS: The District is currently pursuing water sales contracts with several 
neighboring communities’ water entities., Success with these salw efforts to other water providers andlor periodic modest 
rate increases to its own water customers should provide the neci?ded additional revenue to comply with its Sinking Funds 
and Depreciation Fund deposit requirements. 
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P.O. Box 547 0 205 Ash Street a Benton, Kentucky 42025 
Phone: 270.527.3293 * FAX 270.527.3132 

www.united-systems. corn 

January 19,2012 

Crittenden-Livingston County Water District 
620 E Main St 
Salem, KY 42078 

RE: SEALED BID: Radio Read Meters 

To whom it may concern, 

This letter is to confirm that pricing related to the Sept 26, 2011 sealed bid for radio read meters and the subsequent bid addendum dated 11/28/11 will be 
honored by United Systems until 4/1/12. 

We thank you for consideration of our bid. Should any questions or concerns arise, feel free to contact me at scottsc~united-svstems,com or 1.800.455.3293. 
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